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Profile

A statutory body established in 1966, the Hong Kong Trade Development Council (HKTDC)
is the international marketing arm for Hong Kong-based traders, manufacturers and
services providers. With more than 40 offices worldwide, including 11 on the Chinese
mainland, the HKTDC promotes Hong Kong as a platform for doing business with
China and throughout Asia. The HKTDC also organises trade fairs and business missions
to connect companies with opportunities in Hong Kong and on the mainland, while
providing information via trade publications, research reports and the Internet.

Mission

The HKTDC's mission is to create opportunities for Hong Kong companies. We focus on

delivering value by promoting trade in goods and services, while connecting the world’s
small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) through Hong Kong’s business platform.

In striving to be the best trade promotion organisation in the world, the HKTDC is
committed to:

¢ developing and expanding new frontiers by exploring, learning and innovating

e creating and delivering value to our customers

¢ building on Hong Kong's economic success through global business

¢ maintaining trust, respect and openness in all our relationships
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The Councll
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The HKTDC governing body is a 19-member Council of leaders from trade, industry,
commerce and government in Hong Kong. HKTDC Executive Director Fred Lam reports
to the Council, which plans and supervises the HKTDC's global operations and services.
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From the
Chairman

FEREE

“Staying ahead of the curve has

always been

a requirement at

TDC. We cannot just do more

of the same;

we have to be out

front, pathfinding and creating
opportunities.”

[FEFIFRBIFIAR - FESLHE  —HEEZ
BETHIRR » BIITEE—HTE  REE
MEZ[EERHITAIE + X8B3 LFTRIFTAY

BRI

EHATHE - |

Jack So, GBs, OBE, Jp
ERZEN ¢2#2E - OBE - AFML

Hong Kong’s trade and industry have come a long way since TDC
was founded in 1966. Created to help Hong Kong's manufacturers
do business globally, the Council has been instrumental in
propelling Hong Kong’s economic growth and its transformation
from manufacturing centre, to re-export centre, to services industry
centre.

Having served two tours of duty with TDC, from 1985 to 1992 as
Executive Director, and from 2007 to now as Chairman, | can look
back with great satisfaction on TDC's accomplishments, particularly
how we have been assisting SMEs to expand their business. SMEs
represent about 98 per cent of local companies. The working
partnership we have formed with SMEs has helped elevate Hong
Kong to the position of the world’s ninth-largest trading economy.
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WE'VE COME A LONG WAY

In 1966, Hong Kong's trade (exports +
imports) totalled HK$18 billion. At the
end of 2012, this figure stood at HK$7.35
trillion. Our GDP was HK$14 billion in
1966. It is now more than HK$2 trillion.

When TDC first ventured out on to the
world stage, no one was waiting for us
with red carpets. At our first Nuremberg
toy fair, we were relegated to a corner of
the parking lot and, in Africa, we had to
hire an open-sided truck to move Hong
Kong goods across some challenging
terrain to showcase our products. With
such determination and enthusiasm,
TDC took Hong Kong traders to the four
corners of the earth, setting up our first
offices in North America and Europe,
and bringing buyers to Hong Kong. Even
as late as the early 1980s, there was no
proper exhibition venue in Hong Kong.
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The Council had to mount product displays
in its own office or in hotel lobbies. In the
1980s, as Hong Kong’s manufacturing
capacity grew and overseas buyers kept
coming in ever-increasing numbers, the
Council felt the need for a world-class
exhibition centre.

With government approval and through
open tender, TDC formed a public-private
partnership to build the Hong Kong
Convention and Exhibition Centre (HKCEC),
Phase 1, which gave us 20,000 square
metres of facilities for exhibitions as well
as conventions. Encouraged by this new
venue, TDC started and expanded many
trade fairs, which have grown to become
sizeable exhibitions over the years.

Today, after two expansion projects,
the HKCEC is one of the most popular
exhibition and convention facilities in Asia.
TDC organises more than 30 trade fairs
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Left: TDC Chairman Jack So welcomed Hong Kong
SAR Chief Executive CY Leung to the sixth Asian
Financial Forum (AFF), held at the Hong Kong
Convention and Exhibition Centre. The AFF was
organised by the Hong Kong SAR Government and
the Council
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annually for our SMEs to receive orders
and meet potential business partners.
Among our exhibitions, nine are the
biggest in Asia, and three are the largest
in the world. The Hong Kong Book Fair,
which we started in 1990 to fill exhibition
space during the then slow summer
season, has grown to become the world’s
most popular Chinese-language book
show in terms of visitor numbers. In the
past 30 years, TDC has vastly expanded
its data bank, which has evolved into the
present-day online business-matching
service. We have also become one of the
largest publishers of trade magazines,
both online and in print.

In the 1980s, the Chinese mainland
opened its doors to foreign investment.
TDC was active in helping Hong Kong
companies relocate into the Pearl River
Delta. The result was another major
economic transformation; not only did our

manufacturing operations increase many

times, but Hong Kong has also become
a re-export centre, and TDC continues
to promote their products to overseas
markets via Hong Kong. At the same
time, we continued to host mainland
missions seeking investment, connecting
them with the local business community.
The mainland has become Hong Kong’s
industrial hinterland.

Alongside Hong Kong's transformation
to a re-export centre, its services sector
experienced robust growth in the 1980s.
This sector encompasses financial services,
logistics, design, shipping and tourism,
including convention and exhibition
services, serving not only Hong Kong but
the mainland, Southeast Asia and beyond.

Today, the services sector accounts for
more than 90 per cent of Hong Kong’s
GDP, making us one of the most service-
oriented economies in the world. Without
any fanfare, Hong Kong has achieved
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Left: The Chairman welcomed some high-ranking
guests to the Hong Kong Dinner in London in
November 2012, including (left to right): Lord
Green, British Minister of State for Trade &
Investment; Chancellor of the Exchequer George
Osborne; and Carrie Lam, Chief Secretary of the
Hong Kong SAR Government
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Above: The Chairman visited the Middle East in
March 2013. In Abu Dhabi, he met the Minister of
the Economy of the United Arab Emirates and other
key economic members. In this photo, from left
to right, are: His Excellency Abdulla Alturifi, Chief
Executive Officer-Undersecretary Rank and Board
Member of Abu Dhabi Securities & Commodities
Authority; His Excellency Abdulla Saleh,
Undersecretary, Ministry of Economy; His Excellency
Sultan Bin Saeed Al Mansoori, UAE Minister of
Economy; Mr So; and Perry Fung, HKTDC Regional
Director, Middle East & Africa
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yet another transformation. The Council
currently devotes an equal share of our
resources to promoting a wide spectrum
of services sectors. Just as we promote
Hong Kong's products, we now also help
the services sectors find new markets
and match them with potential clients,
especially those from the mainland, where
the services economy is still expanding.

Our past developments have made TDC
well suited to meet the challenges of
today. Asia is now the world’s economic
engine, led by the mainland and a vibrant
ASEAN, both of which have a fast-growing
and consumption-minded middle class.

Looking ahead, the next 12 months will be
challenging for Hong Kong exporters. We
will witness a generally slow global trade
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Right: The Chairman opened the Asian Financial
Forum in January 2013, noting that more than
90 prominent international speakers, including
finance ministers and CEOs of top multinational
corporations, were on hand to share their expertise
and insight. Nearly 2,400 attended the two-day
event
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environment, with sustained headwinds
such as protectionism. As the European
Union continues to muddle through the
debt crisis, and other developed countries
struggle with their own problems, the
world economy would, at best, expand

moderately.

Among developed economies, the United
States looks stronger and more resilient.
Economists are forecasting modest growth
on the back of continued monetary easing,
stronger employment numbers and an

improving housing market.

In Asia, the fiscal and monetary stimulus
pursued by Japan’s new government
should give rise to a long-awaited recovery.
While a weaker yen should be a boon to
exports, the territorial dispute with China
continues to impact on various sectors of

the Japanese economy.
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China has set a target of 7.5 per cent
growth. More subdued and balanced
growth will be supported by government
spending and still moderate monetary
policies. The new leadership is focusing
on lifting the living standards of the
general public, while also identifying
industrialisation, urbanisation and
agricultural modernisation as priorities,
which will bring great opportunities for
our suppliers of consumer goods and

relevant services providers.

Staying ahead of the curve has always
been a requirement at TDC. We cannot
just do more of the same; we have to
be out front, pathfinding and creating
opportunities.

In the coming year, we will focus on two
new initiatives: helping foreign companies
enter the mainland market through Hong
Kong, and assisting mainland companies
to do international expansion through
Hong Kong. In both directions, there is a
value-add to Hong Kong’s services sector,
particularly banking and finance, and the

professional services.

Overseas, we will launch a significant Hong
Kong promotion in New York and Los
Angeles in June 2013. Under the banner
of “Think Asia, Think Hong Kong,” this
promotion will highlight the advantages of
the Hong Kong business platform for US
companies, which are now looking beyond
their domestic market for opportunities in
the relatively robust Asian region.

To help mainland companies’ outbound
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investment activities, we are working
closely with the mainland’s Ministry of
Commerce to explore such opportunities
with Hong Kong companies. A Hong
Kong-Guangdong joint investment
mission to North America with the
Economic and Information Commission
of Guangdong Province will take place in
June 2013. Riding on the aforementioned
US mega-promotion, the mission will
feature business-matching meetings
involving Hong Kong services providers
and connecting Guangdong and North
American companies. A similar initiative is

being planned with Fujian authorities.

All TDC staff realise that we are
committed to achieving three main
objectives: helping Hong Kong companies
maximise opportunities created by the
reshaping global economy, championing
Hong Kong’s role as the business hub of
Asia and sharpening our abilities to serve
SMEs.

TDC has come a long way from its humble
beginning in 1966, to become one of
the most successful trade promotion
agencies. And today we are well prepared
to continue adding value to Hong Kong’s

economy.

Last but not least, | wish to thank Council
members and the Hong Kong SAR
Government for their invaluable support,
and Council staff for their innovative spirit
and hard work. Together, | believe that we
have made a great team for Hong Kong.
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From the
Executive Director
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“We balanced our overseas
services promotions with

major forums in Hong Kong to
showcase our city as a world-class
business platform.”
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Fiscal 2012/13 was a challenging year for Hong Kong exporters,
particularly our SMEs, which faced headwinds from a generally
sluggish global economy.

Yet even a difficult environment will yield opportunities. With
emerging and mature market economies seeking robust regions
with which to trade, we made progress by promoting Hong Kong as
Asia’s central business district.

Building on our city’s economic advantages, we continued our series
of overseas mega-promotions in select mature markets. And we
didn’t have to look far to launch our biggest overseas event of the
year.
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HONG KONG: ASIA'S BUSINESS
SERVICES HUB

With Japan recovering in the aftermath of
the tragic March 2011 events, we felt the
time was right to introduce Hong Kong’s
services to Japanese businesses seeking
opportunities beyond their domestic
market.

The resulting mission, a 130-member
delegation of senior Hong Kong
government and business leaders, briefed
Japanese businesspeople on how to work
with Hong Kong to expand their markets
on the Chinese mainland and abroad.
Called "Think Global, Think Hong Kong,"”
it featured events in Tokyo and Osaka
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Left: HKTDC Executive Director Fred Lam (right) gave
Wen Jiabao, Premier of the State Council of the
People’s Republic of China, an overview of Hong
Kong’s pavilion at the China International Fair for
Trade in Services, held in Beijing in May 2012.
Mr Lam led 39 companies from several Hong
Kong services sectors to the fair and a concurrent
symposium. With Mr Lam are (left to right): Liu Qi,
Secretary of the Beijing Municipal Party Committee;
Mr Wen; and Chen Deming, Minister, Ministry of
Commerce
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Right: The Executive Director (right) joined Hong
Kong SAR Government Financial Secretary John
Tsang (centre) on a tour of the ever-popular
HKTDC Hong Kong Book Fair in July 2012. The 231
edition of the annual fair attracted some 900,000
visitors during its week-long run, despite enduring
shortened hours due to a typhoon. On the left is
HKTDC Deputy Executive Director Benjamin Chau
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in May 2012. Helped by 14 Hong Kong
partners and 107 Japanese organisations,
we drew more than 3,700 participants to
business forums and seminars in the two
cities. Our messages were well-received:
trade enquiries to Hong Kong from
Japanese companies increased by nearly
50 per cent, year-on-year, to more than
15,000 in the 10 months after the event.

The Japan mega-promotion followed our
September 2011 “Think Asia, Think Hong
Kong” event in the United Kingdom. The
UK promotion deserves mention because
of the results it continued to generate. In
the year following that event, business
enquiries were up 80 per cent, year-on-
year, to more than 126,000. Enquiries
were up another 11 per cent from October
2012 to March 2013.

We balanced our overseas services
promotions with major forums in Hong
Kong to showcase our city as a world-class
business platform.

Events such as the Hong Kong
International Film & TV Market (FILMART)
continued to grow. The March 2013 event,
our 17™ edition, featured record exhibitor
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and visitor numbers of 710 and 6,317
respectively. Beyond numbers, compelling
seminars, including the adapted-screenplay
writing session, bolstered FILMART's
reputation as one of the most important
entertainment industry events of its kind in
the world.

The sixth edition of the Asian Financial
Forum (AFF), in January 2013, attracted
nearly 2,400 participants and more than
500 journalists from around the world.
They came to hear about the latest
opportunities in Asia from more than
90 internationally respected leaders in
government, finance and business. The
AFF is also increasingly recognised as a
forum where deals between mainland and

overseas interests are done.

In addition, we made large gains in two
second-year forums covering areas we
consider key to our city’s international
business future.

The Business of IP Asia Forum (BIP Asia) and
the Asian Logistics and Maritime Conference
both saw strong growth during their 2012
editions. These important services events
enhance Hong Kong's reputation as a
leading intellectual property market and a
logistics centre. BIP Asia drew more than
1,400 participants in December 2012, up
103 per cent over its debut year, while
the turnout at the logistics conference, in
November 2012, was virtually double the
previous year’s inaugural edition, up 99
per cent, to almost 1,300 participants.

Hong Kong is a major base for licensors
looking to expand their business into
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Asia, particularly the mainland, where the
market for licensed goods has grown from
US$1.1 billion in 2005 to US$4.6 billion
in 2011. We promote Hong Kong as the
licensing hub of Asia through our Hong
Kong International Licensing Show, the
largest of its kind in the region. For the
January 2013 show, we put a priority on
developing the concurrent Asian Licensing
Conference to position Hong Kong as
a licensing industry thought leader. We
brought in top licensing professionals
from all over the world, which helped the
second-year event achieve an 86 per cent
attendance jump, to more than 1,000.

Alongside our promotional gains on behalf
of Hong Kong, sourcing new markets for
our products and services exporters was
a key focus for us. In Asia, we identified
several markets that afford good potential
for them.

Select ASEAN members such as Indonesia
hold particular promise. With the world’s
fourth-largest population and Southeast
Asia’s largest economy, Indonesia was
specially selected for Lifestyle Expo, a
showcase for Hong Kong manufacturers to
promote their brands in this fast-growing
market. Our second Lifestyle Expo in
Jakarta in the past 12 months attracted
more than 10,000 buyers. Several Hong
Kong vendors received good orders at
the March 2013 expo, with a houseware
company confirming that its products will
be available in a Jakarta Sogo this summer.

We also led two missions to newly opened
Myanmar, which attracted great interest
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Below: The Executive Director led a 150-person
delegation to Myanmar in March 2013 to explore
business opportunities between the newly
emerging ASEAN member and Hong Kong. As part
of the visit, Mr Lam met with senior officials. He
is pictured here with His Excellency U Thein Aung,
Myanmar’s Deputy Minister, Ministry of Industry
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from Hong Kong companies, Myanmar
officials and our local news media. We
took 69 delegates there in June 2012,
on a mission organised with the Hong
Kong Apparel Society. Then, in March
2013, | led 150 businesspeople to the
country. These eye-opening visits examined
Myanmar as a possible production base
for relocating manufacturing from the
increasingly costly Pearl River Delta, and as
a country for establishing trade relations.
A tour of Yangon, Myanmar's largest city,
and areas beyond, also revealed several
opportunities, particularly for Hong Kong

logistics and infrastructure players.
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Farther afield, we led missions to Latin
America in August 2012 and to Africa
three months later. For the former,
we teamed up with the Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association to explore
opportunities in Brazil, which will host
the World Cup and the Olympic Games
in 2014 and 2016 respectively. Mexico,
which recently signed a double-taxation
agreement with Hong Kong, was an
important stop, as was Chile and a first-
time visit to Peru. Each visit attracted some
100 businesspeople and featured business-

matching sessions.

Continued growth in select African
economies took us to the vibrant markets
of Kenya, Nigeria and Ghana. Our 20-
member African mission held some
500 business-matching meetings there.
Growing interest in electronics, consumer
appliances and textiles has placed these
African countries on our radar, and we
will monitor their progress for future
opportunities.

Mainland consumers continue to look to
Hong Kong for cues to international trends
and styles. We saw this as an opportunity
to organise Style Hong Kong Shows, which
help our manufacturers build lifestyle

brands in new mainland markets.

This past year, more than 1.4 million
mainlanders attended shows in five cities,
including first-time events in Dalian, Xian
and Nanning. These events were well
received, with many Hong Kong businesses
finding success in the form of on-the-

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &BE 5 38/ F i

spot sales, while others used the exposure
to open shops on the mainland or strike
distribution deals for their products.

We also opened our second mainland
Design Gallery (DG) shop in Guangzhou,
in July 2012, augmenting our original
store in Beijing. The retail outlets feature
Hong Kong-designed products. In March
2013, we opened a DG outlet in an
upscale Shanghai department store, the
first in a planned “shop-in-shop” concept
designed to help Hong Kong brands set
up counters in key mainland consumer
markets. More than 130 brands have been
available at DG stores this past year, while
more than 200 Hong Kong brands have
been featured on the DG online version,
which caters to the mainland fondness for
Internet shopping.

Our second SmartHK event on the
mainland, in Hangzhou in August 2012,
positioned Hong Kong companies as allies
helping mainland companies upgrade in
the creative, technology and business-
support areas. We brought more than
200 services providers, who met with over
10,000 visitors from Zhejiang province,
prompting more than 640 business-
matching meetings.

For all the advances in connecting
businesspeople online, many buyers and
sellers prefer to do their business at trade
fairs. We organise more than 30 fairs
a year; nine of them are the largest of
their kind in Asia, three are the largest in
the world. This fiscal year, we attracted
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Above: The Executive Director signed a
memorandum of understanding with Hidehiro
Yokoo, President of the Japan External Trade
Organization, at the “Think Global, Think Hong
Kong” event, 15 May 2012, in Tokyo. The
promotion was the largest campaign ever launched
in Japan by the HKTDC. It highlighted how Hong
Kong can help Japanese companies realise new
opportunities in Asia, particularly on the Chinese
mainland. Also in the photo, back row (left to right):
Gregory So, Secretary for Commerce and Economic
Development of the Hong Kong SAR Government,
and Mitsuyoshi Yanagisawa, Senior Vice Minister of
Economy, Trade and Industry of Japan
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683,479 buyers and 33,851 exhibitors to
our fairs, up 1.2 per cent and 3.3 per cent
respectively over the previous year — solid
achievements in a challenging period.

The vast majority of our shows take place
in downtown Hong Kong, and are gaining
currency as marketing shows, where
exhibitors launch new products for Asian
consumption. This past year, we built
up our brand-name halls, seeing solid
exhibitor increases in such fairs as our Baby
Products and Lighting (Autumn) shows.

We also see our trade fairs as natural
opportunities to promote Hong Kong as an
intellectual property trading hub. This fiscal
year we featured IP zones in eight fairs,
enabling participants to mingle with Hong
Kong and overseas IP services providers.

As for our lifestyle shows, we took strides
to open them up to the community. For
our annual July Book Fair, the world’s
most popular Chinese-language book
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event in visitor numbers, we staged more
than 50 related events across the city.
For our January 2013 World Boutique,
Hong Kong, we teamed up with about
120 Hong Kong outlets to bring the show
to the public, staging fashion displays in
shops and cafes.

This year, we invited an external consultant
to review our marketing communications
approach and effectiveness with Hong
Kong stakeholders. The findings showed
good endorsement of our work, as well as
providing recommendations that will be
implemented in due course.

Our communications benefited from
advances made in the social-media
space. This past year, more than ever, we
used such social media sites as LinkedIn,
Facebook, Twitter and Google+, as well
as mainland vehicles Weibo, Tudou,
and Youku, to extend the reach of our
messages.

Whether it is across the world through
new media, or across a display case at a
trade fair, we will continue to seek new
ways to help our companies benefit from
the rapidly changing global business
environment. | invite you to browse
through our annual report, especially our
interactive online version, to learn more
about the work we do at the HKTDC on
behalf of Hong Kong and its SMEs.

Right: The Executive Director shared a moment
with Andrew Wong, Permanent Secretary for
Commerce and Economic Development, at the
fifth Hong Kong International Wine & Spirits Fair.
The November 2012 fair featured record numbers
of buyers and exhibitors and boosted Hong Kong’s
reputation as Asia’s wine-trading centre
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In a year of global economic challenges, the HKTDC explored a wealth of
new opportunities for small and medium-sized enterprises at home and
abroad.
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Helping Hong Kong SMEs
Find New Markets
XEF/INME FEFTTS

OPENING DOORS TO ASEAN

Emerging from decades of isolation,
Myanmar made headlines not only
politically but also because of its growing
business environment. Hong Kong SMEs
considering factory relocations and other
trade opportunities joined the HKTDC on
two trade missions, beginning with a June
2012 trip organised with the Hong Kong
Apparel Society. Nearly 70 delegates took
part in meetings with Myanmar officials as
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Above: Workers sew garments at the Lat War
Company factory in Yangon, Myanmar, where
a June 2012 HKTDC delegation explored
opportunities for factory relocation and investment
in infrastructure and industrial-park development

F BRI AEHAEBLat War Company T R 22 8LR
% 02012668 BEERF/EEHFHEAAER &
NEERE REEERENRRIEEOKS

Left: Dock workers load goods at Myanmar
International Terminals Thilawa, a deep-sea port
25 kilometres south of Yangon. In March 2013, an
HKTDC business mission visited the facility, which
is near a special economic zone. Myanmar officials
hope that Hong Kong expertise and investment will
help upgrade the infrastructure surrounding the
facility
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well as visits to factories and a proposed
industrial park.

In March 2013, a 150-member business
mission visited Myanmar, led by HKTDC
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“To help Hong Kong SMEs do business in a difficult global environment, we explore new
markets both overseas and on the Chinese mainland. Our plan was to create a pathway to new
and diversified markets that would be receptive to Hong Kong manufacturers

and services providers.”

BHATHITHE - HIREH -

Executive Director Fred Lam. Represented
were some 15 Hong Kong sectors,
including electronics, garments, jewellery,
watches and other types of manufacturing,
as well as infrastructure and real estate
services, finance and banking. The
delegation included a logistics mission,
which also visited Cambodia and Thailand
during the trip.

Indonesia was on the itinerary for HKTDC
efforts to support Hong Kong SMEs in
Association of Southeast Asian Nations
(ASEAN) markets. For the second year in a
row, Lifestyle Expo in Jakarta brought Hong
Kong consumer products to the Indonesian
capital. The March 2013 product expo
featured some 200 Hong Kong exhibitors.
Malaysia and Vietnam were also targeted
with a multi-sector business mission

Right: HKTDC Executive Director Fred Lam (left)
and Johnny Lau, Director of Sino Star (Far East) Ltd,
inspected a shirt made at the Lat War Company
factory in Myanmar during the Council’s second trip
to the country, in March 2013
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Margaret Fong, Deputy Executive Director, HKTDC
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Right: At the Lifestyle Expo in Jakarta, HKTDC
Deputy Executive Director Margaret Fong (left)
led a VIP tour that included Hong Kong SAR
Government Secretary for Commerce and Economic
Development Gregory So (centre) and Neddy
Rafinaldy Halim, Deputy Minister, Marketing and
Promotion, Indonesian Ministry of Cooperatives and
Small and Medium Enterprises (second from right)
4 BRERRRBES RN (L) TAZNESE B ¢
ERREHBRKBERRBRREHR (F) URDEHN
LEEDREIR (T RIERE) Neddy Rafinaldy Halim (&
o) —ASBREMERTNREEEER

Below: HKTDC Assistant Executive Director
Raymond Yip (centre, in striped shirt) and Stephen
Wong, HKTDC Regional Director, Middle East and
Africa (black jacket), with African business mission
members at Independence Gate in Accra, Ghana,
one of several stops during the November 2012
trip, which also took in Nairobi, Kenya, and Lagos,
Nigeria
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bringing some 20 companies to those
countries in November 2012.

FROM THE AMERICAS TO AFRICA

Latin America, in particular Brazil, was
also on the agenda this fiscal year. The
country is preparing to host the 2014
World Cup and the 2016 Summer Olympic
Games, offering Hong Kong SMEs a wide
range of merchandising opportunities.
Equally promising for trade is a new
double-taxation agreement between
Mexico and Hong Kong.

To follow up on these developments,
the HKTDC organised a business mission
to Latin America in August 2012, with
support from the Chinese Manufacturers’
Association. More than 20 delegates took
part, visiting Brazil, Chile, Mexico and Peru,
where there is growing interest in Hong
Kong products — particularly those in the
optical and electronics sectors. Demand
for such products has also been growing in
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other parts of the world as global economic
rebalancing expands the ranks of the
middle class in many emerging markets.

Another destination keenly watched
by Hong Kong exporters of electronics,
garments, fashion accessories and building
materials is Africa, where dramatic
economic growth is under way. In
November 2012, the HKTDC organised a
mission for some 20 companies to Ghana,
Kenya and Nigeria to explore business
opportunities. Some 500 business-
matching sessions and other meetings
took place. HKTDC missions also travelled
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to Qatar and the United Arab Emirates in
September 2012, putting infrastructure
development and real estate-related
services opportunities on the table.

MAINLAND ASPIRATIONS

The Chinese mainland continues to hold
great promise for Hong Kong companies.
Business missions travelled to the relatively
untapped inland provinces and second- and
third-tier cities. These well-received missions
covered Ningxia in July 2012, Shandong
in August 2012, and Anhui the following
month. Meetings with provincial and
municipal government leaders, company

Reaching Out: Style Hong Kong Shows

on the Mainland
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Above: Traditional dress and the latest trends came
together at the September 2012 Style Hong Kong
Show in Chengdu, one of five Style Hong Kong
Shows held across the Chinese mainland this fiscal
year
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visits and customised business-matching
meetings were organised for the delegates.

The HKTDC also continued its Style Hong
Kong Shows on the mainland, offering
mainland consumers a wide range of
products, including fashion and fashion
accessories, watches and clocks, jewellery,
gifts, houseware, food and cosmetics. In May
2012, Xian, in Shaanxi Province, was targeted
for the first time by Style Hong Kong, with
more than 180 Hong Kong exhibitors
attracting 275,000 visitors to the event.

Supporting the Style Hong Kong Shows
were television infomercials broadcast
in Guangdong, beginning in June 2012.
The infomercials showcased Hong Kong
products directly to mainland consumers.

The power of the Hong Kong lifestyle

brand was also key to the opening, in July
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2012, of the HKTDC's latest Design Gallery,
at the Guangzhou TeeMall. Together with
an existing store in Beijing, the outlets
featured some 130 Hong Kong lifestyle
products, and offered greater exposure for
the city’s creative designers.

Plans were made for Design Gallery
counters to open inside the fashionable,
high-end New World Department Stores
on the mainland. The first “shop-in-a-shop”
opened in Shanghai in March 2013. The
Design Gallery also expanded in cyberspace,
as the DG Online Shop widened its range
of brands by 48 per cent, featuring more
than 200 Hong Kong brands.

To help Hong Kong companies boost their
business, the HKTDC's resources for SMEs
expanded this fiscal year, particularly with
the launch of a new HKTDC Research
portal, which went online in December
2012. The hktdc.com/research site
responds to the growing need among
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businesspeople to access information
quickly over a wide range of new digital
platforms and mobile devices.

The HKTDC Research site expanded its
practical information on Hong Kong trade,
major product and service industries,
and developed and emerging markets,
with a special emphasis on the mainland.
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Above: The HKTDC Design Gallery in Guangzhou,
which opened in July 2012, followed the mainland’s
first Design Gallery, in Beijing. Design Gallery
counters are also planned for upscale mainland
department stores
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Left: A visitor to the HKTDC SME Centre views
the mobile version of the HKTDC Research portal,
which has been optimised for use on mobile
devices, allowing users to browse articles, photos
and videos on the go
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Above: Steven Tranquilli (left), Chief Executive of
the Italian National Jewellery Association, was
interviewed at the HKTDC Hong Kong International
Jewellery Show by an HKTDC video crew for Market
Insights, which were shown at the fairgrounds as
well as in daily reports sent out to visitors. Nearly
40 of the new videos have been produced since
the feature was introduced in October 2012 to
help SMEs better understand buyer needs at trade
events
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Supported by the HKTDC's team of
economists, the service features new
market trends and opportunities, as well
as regulatory and consumer intelligence.
HKTDC Research reports are now shorter
and sharper, offering a growing range of
multimedia.

The Council’'s flagship e-newsletter,
Hong Kong Trader, also expanded its
multimedia offerings to keep SMEs
informed about business news and
market trends. The online publication
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again posted double-digit growth in
subscriptions. By the end of March
2013, nearly 163,000 people had
subscribed to customised editions of
the publication, with Hong Kong Trader
reaching 1.4 million readers in all.

CENTRE FOR OPPORTUNITY

The HKTDC's SME Centre was a busy place
in 2012/13, hosting some 35 workshops,
with a focus on China business, SME
management, intellectual property and
entrepreneurship. More than 3,000 people
took part in the centre’s SME-focused
workshop series. Some 91 per cent of
those attending said they found the
workshops useful and practical.

Located at the Hong Kong Convention
and Exhibition Centre, the 16,000 square-
foot SME Centre also offers business
information and networking, as well as the
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expertise of the China Business Advisory
Service. A team of mainland government
officials, industry players and local business
specialists works at the service, offering
SMEs one-on-one advice on the mainland’s
vast markets.
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Above: Digital-marketing expert Napoleon Biggs
offered tips for e-marketing on the mainland at this
January 2013 seminar, one of the events held this
year at the HKTDC SME Centre

L BREBRRPIEORBEPOREFERNET ZEE
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Left: The 45" anniversary of the HKTDC's flagship
magazine Enterprise and the launch of the
Enterprise Yearbook were celebrated at the HKTDC
World SME Expo. The December 2012 ceremony
was led by (left to right): HKTDC Director, Product
Promotion Ralph Chow; Sunnex Products Ltd Sales
Manager Bede Chow; HKTDC Deputy Executive
Director Benjamin Chau; Wei Yit Vacuum Flask
Mfy Ltd Manager Bobby Wu; HKTDC Electronics/
Electrical Appliances Industries Advisory Committee
Chairman KB Chan; and HKTDC Director,
Publications & E-Commerce, Sophia Chong
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Promoting
Hong Kong Services

HER B R

Enhancing Hong Kong'’s standing as a world-class services centre and
Asia‘s central business district were key goals of HKTDC promotions,
locally and overseas, this year.
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Promoting

Hong Kong Services

HEEE RS

Above: At the May 2012 “Think Global, Think
Hong Kong” promotion in Tokyo, international
business leaders took to the stage. They were
(left to right): Toyojiro Maruya, Professor, Fukui
Prefectural University; James Thompson, Chairman
and Chief Executive, Crown Worldwide Holdings
Ltd; Philip Chen, Managing Director, Hang Lung
Properties Ltd; Fang Fang, Vice-Chairman, Asia,
CEO, China, Investment Banking, JP Morgan; and
Song Zheng Huan, Chairman, Goodbaby Group.
More than 80 high-profile speakers took part in the
event’s two symposiums in Tokyo and Osaka

L EBREREEAYRIE2012F5 8 ERTETH (B
2R FRER]  BR(EEL) EBHBIABHEK
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B [Em2X 5258 MRESKERESBRAR
RERARET  HBSBBORERRBESHAH

Right: Iconic images of Japan and Hong Kong were
created on stage by Chinese sand-painting artist
Zhilin at the 15 May 2012 Hong Kong Dinner in
Tokyo, part of the HKTDC's Think Global, Think
Hong Kong promotional campaign in Japan

4 1201258150 - [EERR HEEE | HRETH
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THINK GLOBAL, THINK HONG KONG

The largest Hong Kong promotional
campaign ever organised in Japan was held
in May 2012. “Think Global, Think Hong
Kong” was a follow-up to the inaugural
“Think Asia, Think Hong Kong” campaign,
which took place in the United Kingdom
in 2011. The Japan event, involving 130
Hong Kong Government officials and
business leaders representing 15 business
sectors, attracted more than 3,700 trade
participants. The programme featured
symposiums in Tokyo and Osaka, along
with a range of thematic seminars led by
high-profile speakers from Hong Kong, the
Chinese mainland and Japan.

Think Global, Think Hong Kong connected
Japanese companies with Hong Kong

Bozix HESB
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“Hong Kong is Asia’s business services centre, and we at the HKTDC promote our city’s advantages
here and around the world. Hong Kong’s strengths in areas such as finance, logistics,

intellectual property, licensing, entertainment-related and other professional services make

our city unique in Asia.”

Right: The Hong Kong Dinner in Tokyo welcomed
more than 680 distinguished guests from Hong
Kong and Japan. The event took place during the
Think Global, Think Hong Kong campaign in Japan
A [BEziR HEEE] JHERFRETHNEERE
5| BiB680 5 E 8 K A AEE REMHE

expertise for potential collaboration.
Forums that followed the symposiums
offered participants marketing intelligence
and practical information on how Japanese
companies can work with Hong Kong to
do business in global markets, especially
the mainland. Topics ranged from selling
consumer brands and creating and
distributing digital content, to partnership
opportunities in environmental and
manufacturing technology, setting up
business in the mainland’s Pearl River Delta
and taking advantage of Hong Kong’s
expanding renminbi business services.

Raymond Yip, Assistant Executive Director, HKTDC
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Business of IP
Asia Forum
RN E A TR

Asian Logistics and
Maritime Conference
TR R EER

Asian Licensing
Conference
RS

Right: Hong Kong SAR Government Director of
Intellectual Property Peter Cheung spoke at the
Business of IP Asia Forum’s luncheon, held in Hong
Kong in December 2012

A BARBRANREREERRIBIEN2012F12A8
THENIREREEWmENEETELRE
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Promoting Hong Kong Services

Strong Attendance Growth at these Second-Year Events Raised Hong Kong's Logistics,
IP Protection and Licensing Profile, Promoting the City as Asia’s Central Business District
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SERVICES IN THE SPOTLIGHT

The Council continued to build on the
successes of events introduced in 2011,
including the Business of IP Asia Forum (BIP
Asia), which showcased the city’s strengths
as an emerging intellectual-property
hub. Held in December 2012, the second

BERBE

BRFR20MFERSREZESE - RE
EW o AFEBEZBERE R2012F128%8
PE_EEMNABERLEETRE > NEEE
FRRANBERE ZRAFTABHES -
K EREEBERE23EE Rt EE1,400

edition of BIP Asia attracted more than
1,400 intellectual-property professionals
and government officials from 23 countries
and regions. Influential speakers headlined
the event, including Grégoire Bisson, World
Intellectual Property Organization Director
of the Hague Registry, Brands and Designs
Sector, and Wolf Meier-Ewert, Counsellor,
Intellectual Property Division, World Trade
Organization.

To showcase Hong Kong's strength as a
regional logistics hub, the Asian Logistics
and Maritime Conference was again
organised with the Hong Kong SAR
Government. The November 2012 event

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT BEEZERBEFHR 2012/13
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Above: The second edition of the Asian Logistics
and Maritime Conference, held in November 2012,
was the largest of its kind in Asia

LS EENDRRSEEEN2012F 11 AT B
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Left: Scott Price, President and CEOQ, Walmart
Asia, spoke at the Asian Logistics and Maritime
Conference’s plenary session on the global
economy’s shift to the East
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focused on the global economy’s shift from
West to East and opportunities offered by
emerging markets, particularly ASEAN,
India and the mainland. Featuring 33
internationally renowned speakers and
moderators, the event attracted close to
1,300 participants from 21 countries and
regions, making it the largest conference of
its kind in Asia, and in only its second year.

As more Hong Kong companies turn to
licensing to upgrade their business, the
two-day Asian Licensing Conference
offered Hong Kong and regional players
insights from such international companies
as The Coca-Cola Company, Warner Bros
Consumer Products, adidas Italy Spa and
the Fédération Internationale de Football
Association. The conference’s second edition
attracted more than 1,000 participants from

Above: Kate Dwyer, Group Director, Worldwide
Licensing, The Coca-Cola Company, spoke about
the global brand’s marketing strategy at the second
edition of the Asian Licensing Conference

£ IO AN RIRM @ R E A S @ = B Kate DwyerfA
FENEEEER L BUHRMRNTISRE

Left: Vincent Hsieh, General Manager, Guangdong
Alpha Animation and Culture Co, offered his

insights on breaking into the international licensing
market at the Asian Licensing Conference
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26 countries and regions, making it the
largest event of its kind in Asia.

Held concurrently with the Asian Licensing
Conference, the HKTDC Hong Kong
International Licensing Show remains the
region’s leading event for the industry. The
11" edition, held in January 2013, hosted
209 exhibitors, a 21 per cent increase
over the previous year, including first-time
participants from Australia, Colombia,
India, Italy and Malaysia. Among the more
than 600 global characters, brands and
properties featured were: Barbie, Batman,

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &BE 5 38/ F i
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Below: Korean exhibitor Iconix Entertainment was
among more than 200 exhibitors from 18 countries
at the Hong Kong International Licensing Show, the
largest event of its kind in Asia. The show featured
more than 600 brands and properties
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Above: The sixth Asian Financial Forum was opened
by Hong Kong SAR Chief Executive CY Leung,
who announced the launch of a Financial Services
Development Council “to enhance, elevate and
champion the competitive position of Hong Kong
as an international financial centre”

L EBRETRRERRRAAEAEDINSHREER
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Right: Lawrence H Summers, the Charles W Eliot
University Professor at Harvard University's Kennedy
School of Government, and former US Treasury
Secretary, was the keynote speaker at AFF 2013

£ RBEABHEERNEESREERE - REAEHK
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Forever Friends, Looney Tunes, Miffy and
Friends, Angry Birds, adidas, Land Rover,
Dunlop and Jaguar.

Hong Kong’s prominence as the region’s
financial services centre dominated the
sixth Asian Financial Forum. Under the
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theme "Asia: Shaping the Next Global
Landscape,” the January 2013 event was
the biggest to date, attracting nearly 2,400
financial and business representatives from
39 countries and regions. Among the
97 speakers taking part was Lawrence H
Summers, the Charles W Eliot University
Professor at Harvard University’s Kennedy
School of Government, and former US
Treasury Secretary. About 500 Deal Flow
meetings were arranged, with investors
and project owners talking business. Some
140 companies, including 19 mainland

investors, took part.

Held concurrently with World SME Expo
and BIP Asia, the December 2012 Inno
Design Tech Expo drew 351 exhibitors

fE%E (Barbie) - Ymi&E{& (Batman) » Forever
Friends » Looney Tunes * Miffy and
Friends » %5 (Angry Birds) * adidas *
Land Rover * Dunlop#17&2g (Jaguar) °
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and 39,247 visitors looking for design
services, business technology and IP
trading solutions. With Denmark as Partner
Country, the Expo was a highlight of the
Hong Kong SAR Government’s 2012 Hong
Kong Design Year.

One of the top three markets in the global
film calendar, second only to the Cannes
Film Market, the HKTDC Hong Kong
International Film & TV Market (FILMART)
attracted a record-breaking number of
visitors. More than 6,300 buyers from
about 50 countries took part, as well
as a record-breaking 710 exhibitors,
including first-time participants from New
Zealand, Portugal, Qatar and Sweden.
One of the highlights of the event, held
in March 2013, was a collaboration with
Hong Kong’s Salon Films, which brought
the first mini-dome digital cinema to an
international film market.
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Above: Crown Prince Frederik of Denmark (centre)
and his wife Princess Mary toured the Danish
Pavilion at the eighth Inno Design Tech Expo, which
welcomed Denmark as Partner Country

+ BEEREBEEZL (Crown Prince Frederik) (1) B2 E
#ICIERE (Crown Princess Mary) 285 )\ Rt & Al
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Left: A mini-dome cinema, presented in
collaboration with Hong Kong’s Salon Films, was
one of the highlights at FILMART 2013
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Above: Visitors at SmartHK Hangzhou admired the
result of a crossover project between Hong Kong
designers and the Strida bicycle brand
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To help mainland enterprises expand
overseas, the HKTDC held a series of
programmes to promote Hong Kong as
the springboard for outbound investment.

The HKTDC organised two joint outbound
investment missions this fiscal year, one to
Germany with Guangdong Province in May
2012, the other to Japan, in September
2012, with Zhejiang Province. The mission
members to Germany met with senior
representatives of 118 companies. More
than 20 potential deals were reported.
As for the Japanese mission, participants
explored the latest developments in green

technology and new materials.
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In August 2012, the second edition of
SmartHK was staged in Hangzhou to
help Hong Kong services providers take
advantage of the rising demand for
creative, technology and business-support
services in the Yangtze River Delta region.
More than 200 Hong Kong services
providers met over 10,000 Zhejiang visitors
at the event, resulting in more than 640
business-matching meetings.

The second Hong Kong Legal Services
Forum was staged in Guangzhou, in
September 2012, to promote Hong Kong's
legal services to mainland enterprises
going global, and to reinforce the city's
image as the leading international legal
and dispute-resolution centre in Asia. The
event, organised with the Hong Kong SAR
Government, and led by 27 Hong Kong
legal experts, attracted more than 690
participants from Hong Kong, Guangzhou

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &BE 5 38/ F i
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Above: Delegates of a joint Hong Kong-Guangdong
investment mission talked business with German
companies during the trip, which took delegates to
Frankfurt, Stuttgart, Munich and Berlin
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Left: Speaking at the Hong Kong Forum'’s Star
Leaders Panel discussion, John Rice, General Electric
Company Vice Chairman, said that “the excellent
infrastructure and location of Hong Kong supports
our strategies to enter the China market”
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and neighbouring cities. More than
130 business-matching meetings were
arranged between Hong Kong law firms
and mainland companies.

International business leaders and
associations were kept abreast of the latest
developments in Hong Kong through
high-level bilateral meetings and the
annual Hong Kong Forum. Organised with
the Federation of Hong Kong Business
Associations Worldwide, the forum was
attended by close to 400 members,
representing 33 associations.
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The Council continued to cement ties
with key Asian economies through
three high-level bilateral meetings with
representatives from Korea, Taiwan
and Japan. The 15" Hong Kong/Korea
Business Round-table, held in Hong Kong
in September 2012, was attended by 16
Korean and 11 Hong Kong members,
and covered such topics as finance,
opportunities in the environmental-
protection sector and the creative
industries.

The third Hong Kong-Taiwan Business Co-
operation Committee’s Annual Meeting
took place in September 2012. A high-level

Above: The 15" Hong Kong/Korea Business Round-
table, held in September 2012, covered such topics
as finance, environmental protection and the
creative industries
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business forum was staged alongside it to
explore bilateral cooperation opportunities,
particularly in the areas of investment and

e-commerce.

The 32" Plenary Session of the Hong
Kong-Japan and Japan-Hong Kong
Business Co-operation Committees
was held in Hong Kong in March 2013,
attended by 24 members and speakers
from both sides. Hong Kong SAR Chief
Executive CY Leung was the keynote
speaker at the plenary luncheon.

The eighth Plenary Session of the Hong
Kong-France Business Partnership was held
in Paris in March 2013. The trip to France
included visits to key high-technology and
research companies in Toulouse, the heart

of Europe’s aerospace industry.
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Left: HKTDC Deputy Executive Director Margaret
Fong (right) and Tom Tang (second from right),
Chairman of the Hong Kong Committee of the
Hong Kong-France Business Partnership, along
with delegation members, toured the European
Aeronautic Defence and Space Company’s Airbus
production site in Toulouse, France
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Strengthening

Hong Kong as Asia’s
Exhibition Capital
Z[EHE L)

B 2 BRI HBAL

While the global economy continued to struggle, HKTDC trade fairs
attracted more exhibitors and buyers this year, and from all over the world.
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Strengthening Hong Kong as

Asia’s Exh|b|t|on Capltal
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Above: Budding chefs made a stir during a
Gourmet Zone cooking session at the August 2012
HKTDC Food Expo. The five-day fair attracted more
than 16,000 trade buyers, up 30 per cent over the
previous year, and over 390,000 public visitors
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WELCOMING THE WORLD

This fiscal year, 25 of the HKTDC's 35
fairs enjoyed record exhibitor or buyer
participation. In all, HKTDC fairs welcomed
683,479 buyers, up 1.2 per cent over the
previous fiscal year, and 33,851 exhibitors,
an increase of about 3.3 per cent, year-on-
year.

Three fairs, the autumn edition of the
Electronics Fair, together with the Hong
Kong Gifts & Premium Fair and the Hong

46

Kong Watch & Clock Fair, remained the
largest of their kind in the world. Nine
HKTDC fairs were the largest in Asia,
including the January 2013 Hong Kong
Toys & Games Fair and the April 2012
Hong Kong Houseware Fair.

LIFESTYLE FAIRS

HKTDC fairs continued to build on Hong
Kong’s growing reputation as a regional
lifestyle trendsetter. At the August 2012
Food Expo, for example, the fair's Gourmet
Zone attracted more than 71,000 visitors,
twice as many as at the Gourmet Zone's
2011 fair debut. Showcasing fine food and
wine, the zone presented more than 70
exhibitors, up 60 per cent over 2011. Still
with wine, the Hong Kong International
Wine & Spirits Fair, in November 2012,
broke both exhibitor and buyer records. The
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“The year 2012/13 was a challenging period for trade and businesses. More companies from
around the world were looking for effective platforms to develop business,

and an increased number of them chose HKTDC's exhibitions.”
Benjamin Chau, Deputy Executive Director, HKTDC

[2012/13F EH THRRACHEEELN —F  UREMNTFREBEHXBEHY FEAREE  BUHES
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popular fair attracted 20,369 buyers from
80 countries and regions. Asian buyers
were up 200 per cent over the fair's 2008
inaugural edition, attesting to the growing
popularity of wine throughout the region.

More than 38,000 buyers, up 14 per cent
over the previous year, took in the HKTDC's
two January 2013 fashion fairs: World
Boutique, Hong Kong, and Hong Kong
Fashion Week for Fall/Winter. Fashion
Week, the largest fair of its kind in Asia,

Right: The HKTDC's Benjamin Chau (centre)
toasted the success of the fourth Hong Kong
International Wine & Spirit Competition, among
the highlights of the November 2012 HKTDC Hong
Kong International Wine and Spirits Fair. Joining
Mr Chau were (left to right): Simon Tam, Wine &
Spirit Competition Director; Rupert Hogg, Director,
Sales & Marketing, Cathay Pacific Airways; Allen
Gibbons, the Competition’s Executive Director; and
Debra Meiburg, its Director
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is a global sourcing show for garments,
fashion, fabric, clothing accessories and

related products.

World Boutique, dedicated to promoting
fashion brands, welcomed a record 559
brand names and once again staged
Hong Kong Fashion Extravaganza. The
gala evening, which drew 1,600 industry
professionals and many of the city’s most
stylish, spotlighted the fashion of four
internationally celebrated designers,
including Hong Kong’s Johanna Ho. Some
6,000 people from around the world also
watched Fashion Extravaganza through
Google+ Hangouts On Air, on HKTDC's
Google+ page. The live event took place
thanks to the Council’s new technology

partnership with Google.

Fashion Extravaganza was also broadcast

Left: More than 42,000 happy buyers from some
140 countries and regions took part in the March
2013 HKTDC Hong Kong International Jewellery
Show. That was up nearly 11 per cent over the
previous year, with emerging-market buyers up 18
per cent. More than 3,300 exhibitors, a new fair
record, participated in the show’s 30™ edition
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live at Hong Kong's Times Square, as part
of Hong Kong in Fashion. A community-
wide promotion that ran for three
weeks in January, Hong Kong in Fashion
celebrated the city’s role as a fashion hub
and trendsetter. Some 120 local fashion
retailers, restaurants, shopping malls and
coffee shops took part in the campaign.

A series of community events was also
organised as a promotional lead-in to the
July 2012 Hong Kong Book Fair. More than
50 activities took place across the city. In
all, the Book Fair attracted some 900,000
visitors during its week-long run.

Long known as Asia’s major sourcing
shows, HKTDC fairs continued to develop
as product marketing showcases. This
year's fairs offered an expanded variety
of activities to help exhibitors market
their products. These included some 200
fashion shows, parades, product launches
and competitions.
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The fairs’ brand-name halls continued to
attract brands, with a number of shows,
including the January 2013 Hong Kong
Baby Products Fair, the October 2012 Hong
Kong International Lighting Fair (Autumn
Edition) and the November 2012 Hong
Kong Optical Fair, showing double-digit

increases.

A wide variety of communications was
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Above: A press conference at Harbour City
introduced the January 2013 HKTDC Hong
Kong Fashion Week for Fall/Winter and HKTDC
World Boutique, Hong Kong. Show highlights
included Hong Kong Fashion Extravaganza. This
year's evening gala spotlighted the latest fashion
collections from Paris’ Nana Aganovich and Brooke
Taylor, Beijing’s Chi Zhang, London’s Holly Fulton
and Hong Kong’s Johanna Ho

£ 2013F 1 ARTHNEBREANL RIIREBERE
HMEZCHBERAENEBRET HENHEAZ R
(B8 EBF] - —SRANSERS  RRREBR
HIs&st#4A 4 Nana AganovichF1Brooke Taylor » 3t Z R
5t - fRZHIHolly Fulton & BB HAE B & Fm

Left: The 20" HKTDC Hong Kong Optical Fair, in
November 2012, welcomed some 630 exhibitors,
a new fair record, and featured a variety of topical
industry seminars, as well as the 10" Hong Kong
Optometric Conference
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Above: There was no shortage of bright ideas at
the October 2012 HKTDC Hong Kong International
Lighting Fair (Autumn Edition). The 14" edition,
which attracted nearly 2,300 exhibitors, a new fair
record, introduced areas spotlighting advertising
lighting and smart lighting, while more than 800
exhibitors offered environmentally friendly products
at the LED & Green Lighting zone
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Right: More than 2,000 exhibitors from 32
countries and regions participated in the April 2012
HKTDC Hong Kong Houseware Fair, the largest
of its kind in Asia. Fifteen group pavilions took
part, including the ASEAN Select Pavilion, which
featured 85 exhibitors from Indonesia, Malaysia,
the Philippines, Thailand and Vietnam
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employed to promote the fairs, from photo
and video displays of exhibitor products to
print and online advertorials, TV and radio
coverage, press conferences and social
media collaborations.

Responding to the growing number of
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businesses looking for more flexibility in
their product purchasing, the HKTDC began
adding the Small-Order Zone to its fairs
and its online marketplace in early 2012.
Since April 2012, the zone has drawn more
than 100,000 visits from nine fairs, while
generating more than 80,000 enquiries to
over 1,200 suppliers. At last count, more
than 70,000 products from over 3,500
suppliers were available from the online
Small-Order Zone, at hktdc.com, generating
more than 210,000 enquiries.

A range of new initiatives this fiscal year
helped Hong Kong SMEs expand their
emerging-market opportunities. These
included buyer forums, with traders
from such economies as Russia, Poland,
India and the Middle East sharing their
sourcing needs and market trends with
exhibitors.
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Left: The Small-Order Zone has become one of the
HKTDC's most popular fair areas for buyers and
sellers alike since its gradual introduction, beginning
in early 2012. It has also found ready acceptance
on the HKTDC's online marketplace, hktdc.com
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FAST FACTS

MAKING CONNECTIONS EASIER

The HKTDC this year offered quick
response (QR) code scanning at 26 of its
fairs to better integrate the events with
the Council’s online marketplace. Some 80
per cent of fair exhibitors were scanned by
buyers, who obtained the detailed exhibitor
information available on hktdc.com. In
return, exhibitors received details of buyers
who scanned their codes.

The HKTDC also began to assign QR codes
to individual advertising suppliers in all its
print publications. This has helped buyers
with smartphones and tablets access
additional supplier details online, allowing
them to make enquiries immediately.

The hktdc.com’s free sourcing service
generated some 24 million business
connections this fiscal year. The service
provides buyers with supplier lists

Above: QR code scanning at HKTDC fairs has been
widely adopted by buyers, who appreciate the
detailed exhibitor information, and by exhibitors,
who receive details of the buyers scanning their
products
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HKTDC Fairs with Record-Breaking Buyer Attendance
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Percentage Increase in Buyer Numbers 2012/13

EXAMBEENTRERRRES

2012135 Bk E—FEEXHE HWTHE(%)

9.6

according to specific sourcing requests,
and is one of the most popular offerings
at HKTDC fairs.

SOCIAL MEDIA MARKETING

Complementing its Google+ partnership,
the HKTDC created several accounts on
Sina Weibo, one of the Chinese mainland’s
most popular social media sites, to raise
mainland awareness of the HKTDC's export
marketing services. In addition, the HKTDC
increased its use of LinkedIn, the largest
business social network in the world, to
build relations with key buyers. Nearly
3,000 buyers from around the world
joined the HKTDC's buyer community on
LinkedIn.

RETHREE » hktdc.comfI R BB RIS E
M T#2,400BEHEHE - EERE AR
BERBRENRKBER  REFSHEM4H
MEBHEE  REBERRBEIEUNR
Bz— -

HRERE

BT EGoogle+E K EERME BEERB
TEFRME - FER R ZED AL RS
BELHERTZERS  ORBEFEN
EBERRENEOERRSE - 1k FE
BRETHAEAEREREELTFEL
Linkedin » BEX2EREVEE - BAl - &
H#AE3,0008 EXRE EBLinkedinfl A &
BRENEREE -

29.4-,

53



Developing
Our Orgamsatlon

HERRE

The HKTDC devoted considerable resources to the professional and
personal development of its employees, better equipping them to serve
Hong Kong SMEs, while contributing to the local community.
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Above: HKTDC executive trainees rose to daunting
challenges at a July 2012 “boot camp” to build
confidence, determination and team spirit
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Right: Energy management firm BillionGroup
Technologies Ltd’s Managing Director Steve Wong
shared his business experience with 140 university
students at a January 2013 “CEO Interview" session
under the HKTDC Trade Ambassador Programme
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The HKTDC is focused on adding value to
Hong Kong, while helping local companies
succeed in tomorrow’s competitive business
environment. The HKTDC's Executive Trainee
Scheme, which grooms future leaders for
the Council, recruited eight participants
for its 16" class in July 2012. That month,
the 13" class graduated, and four of them
were appointed as assistant managers in
various departments. Apart from on-the-job
training, the trainees took an active role in
corporate functions and other activities in

the three-year programme.

More than 500 university students
participated in the HKTDC Trade
Ambassador Programme in 2012/13.
Organised by the HKTDC in cooperation
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with local universities, the programme
raises awareness of the importance of trade
to Hong Kong. Activities included “Meet
the HKTDC Economist” sessions, in which
Council economists discussed global market
trends, and “CEQ Interview” sessions, with
business leaders recounting their success
stories and industry developments.

To build closer relations with customers
and respond more effectively to their
needs, the HKTDC continued to develop
its Customer Relationship Programme. This
year, the programme featured company
visits by HKTDC managerial executives,
district outreach luncheons and courtesy
phone calls. In 2012/13, 2,451 phone
calls and 827 company visits were made,
while nine outreach luncheons were held
for 386 representatives of 337 companies.
Customer feedback is continually analysed

to help drive service improvement.
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Meanwhile, a variety of corporate outreach
initiatives was also conducted to build
sustainable relationships, understand the
needs of the business community and
promote HKTDC services. These included
guided tours of HKTDC fairs for members of
overseas business chambers in Hong Kong.

Below: HKTDC SME Relations Manager Roman
Law gave a guided tour to American Chamber of
Commerce members at the HKTDC World SME
Expo in December 2012. The tours help inform
the business sector of opportunities at Hong Kong
trade fairs
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Below right: HKTDC Deputy Executive Director
Margaret Fong (fifth from right) and overseas
consuls-general in Hong Kong enjoyed a walk
together in Sai Kung in November 2012, one of the
Council's many outreach events to promote closer
ties with the business sector
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Above: Senior HKTDC executives, including Director
of Product Promotion Ralph Chow (third from
left), attended a February 2013 leadership training
seminar conducted by Stephen Lee, President, Peter
F Drucker Academy (centre). It was one of many
training courses organised by the HKTDC to help
staff better serve Hong Kong SMEs
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Right: An HKTDC customer service manager (right)
visited Hong Kong manufacturer Cheuk Yip Plastic
Fty Ltd, in November 2012, to learn about the
company’s business and its observations on Council
services
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In 2012/13, the HKTDC offered more than
100 in-house training programmes, with
enrolment exceeding 2,850, to enhance staff
capabilities. Offerings included a seminar
series on leadership development, best-
practice sessions with speakers from other
companies, soft-skill training, as well as China
business seminars and e-learning courses.

The HKTDC's Staff Wellness Day featured
health checks and related measures as part
of a general effort to enhance well-being
among staff.

The HKTDC's core values — trust,
developing new frontiers, creating value
and commitment — continued to help
employees serve Hong Kong SMEs,
ensuring that the Council delivered on its
brand promises and achieved performance
breakthroughs.

During the year, the Core Values Working
Group organised workshops for new
recruits, instilling in them the culture of
service, innovation and commitment that
drives the HKTDC.
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Employees who exemplified these values
were recognised through the seventh
HKTDC Commitment Awards. At the
presentation ceremony, held in December
2012, nine staff members and teams were
honoured with Individual, Customer Service,
Team and Branch Office Awards. Winners
included teams with members from branch
offices around the world, underscoring the
HKTDC's global team spirit and cohesion.

The Small-Order Zone team was honoured
for responding to the needs of global
buyers, particularly those from emerging
markets, for products in small quantities.
The zone, which can now be found in
many HKTDC trade fairs, has created new
opportunities for Hong Kong suppliers.

The Crowd Control Team was honoured
for ensuring safe conditions for trade
fair participants even in challenging
weather situations, including the typhoon
experienced during the HKTDC Hong Kong
Book Fair.
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Dedication was also acknowledged at the
HKTDC Long Service Awards. In December
2012, 52 employees received these
awards, including 15 from overseas offices.
Four awardees were recognised for serving
the Council for 35 years, three for 30 years
of service and six for 25 years; 22 marked
their 20" year with the HKTDC and 17
were noted for a decade of service.

During 2012/13, the HKTDC organised
various initiatives to raise public awareness
of the Council's work on behalf of Hong
Kong. These included three series of
infomercials aired on television. They
focused on the HKTDC's efforts to promote
Hong Kong’s services industries, help SMEs
meet economic challenges and explore
emerging markets.

Last year, the HKTDC once again sponsored
the “Wan Chai a la Carte” food map. A
collaboration with the Wan Chai District
Council, the map featured more than 120
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Left: HKTDC Executive Director Fred Lam (in green
sweater) helps celebrate the 2012 Long Service
Awards with recipients
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Above: For the sixth year, the HKTDC sponsored the
“Wan Chai a la Carte” food map, a handy guide to
restaurants in the district
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Right: With the support of HKTDC Assistant
Executive Director Lawrence Yipp (centre),
volunteers collected toys from exhibitors at the
HKTDC Hong Kong Toys & Games Fair 2013 for
donation to non-governmental organisations
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restaurants, offering locals and visitors a
handy and informative guide to dining and
drinking in the area. It was launched at
the August 2012 HKTDC Food Expo and
distributed at other HKTDC trade fairs, the
HKTDC Design Gallery, the HKTDC SME
Centre, Wan Chai District Councillors’
offices and St James' Settlement. An
electronic version was made available on
the HKTDC website.

ALL FOR CHARITY

The HKTDC contributed to charity through
its Reach Out campaign at the April 2012
HKTDC Hong Kong Gifts & Premium Fair,
as well as the January 2013 HKTDC Hong
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Above: At the Standard Chartered Hong Kong
Marathon 2013, Hong Kong SAR Government
Secretary for Commerce and Economic
Development Gregory So (centre) posed with
the HKTDC team behind a banner that said:
“The HKTDC goes the extra mile to fully support
SMEs.” Standing to Mr So's left is HKTDC Assistant
Executive Director Raymond Yip
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Kong Toys & Games Fair and HKTDC Hong
Kong Baby Products Fair. Some 240 boxes
of toys and gifts were collected from more
than 60 exhibitors and donated to 34
non-governmental organisations through
the Hong Kong Council of Social Service.

HKTDC staff also participated in fitness
activities for charitable causes. Led by
Executive Director Fred Lam, more than 70
HKTDC employees ran in the February 2013
Standard Chartered Hong Kong Marathon.
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Above: An HKTDC employee warmed up for the
Sowers Action Challenging 12 Hours Charity
Marathon 2012
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The Council organised a corporate team
to compete at the MTR Hong Kong Race
Walking, in October 2012, and the Sowers
Action Challenging 12 Hours Charity
Marathon the following month. At the
latter event, the HKTDC won a Fund
Raising Award in the Corporation Category,
raising more than HK$50,000 for education
on the Chinese mainland.

Ahead of the September 2012 Mid-
Autumn Festival, HKTDC employees
and their companions handed out
gifts to underprivileged elderly people
living alone in government-subsidised
housing. The event was organised by St
James’ Settlement. Its Valentine's Rose
Charity Sales Fundraising Campaign, in
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February 2013, was also supported by
Council staff, who helped sell roses to
raise funds for the organisation.

HKTDC staff provided companionship to the
underprivileged through leisure activities,
including a July 2012 visit to the Hong
Kong Science Museum with a group of
mentally disadvantaged children in an event
organised by the Hong Chi Association.

In the “Dine in Upper Central while
Contributing to the Community”
event, organised by the Hong Kong
Young Women's Christian Association
in November 2012, Council employees
joined a group of ethnic-minority
children on a tour of local heritage sites
to help promote cultural exchanges and

racial harmony.

HKTDC staff also took part in a range of
Community Chest activities, including
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the Skip Lunch Day and Charity Golf Day
in March 2013, and Dress Special Day
in September 2012. A Blood Donation
Day was organised the same month in
support of the Hong Kong Red Cross
Blood Donation Drive.

The HKTDC believes that improving the
personal well-being of its employees
leads to better performance at work.
In 2012/13, about 700 staff members
enrolled in 33 interest classes. These
included yoga, tai chi, flower arranging,
cookery, wine tasting and handicrafts.
More than 20 lunchtime workshops on
parenting, health, personal growth and
financial planning were organised, with
more than 350 employees attending. A
staff e-newsletter, HKTDC eNews, was
launched in January 2013 to share Council
news and the latest lifestyle information.
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Left: An HKTDC employee (centre) and her husband
shared a fun day with ethnic-minority children at
the November 2012 “Dine in Upper Central while
Contributing to the Community” tour
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The Hong Kong Trade Development Council (HKTDC) is a statutory organisation
governed by the HKTDC Ordinance (Chapter 1114 of the Laws of Hong Kong). It
is committed to demonstrating high standards of corporate governance, both as a
statutory body in the public service and as an organisation with a responsibility to
show leadership in best practices to Hong Kong'’s business community. It places high
priority on the accountability and responsible financial management that underpins

good corporate governance, and also corporate social responsibility (CSR).

The HKTDC benefits from the advice and direction of a 19-member Council
established under the HKTDC Ordinance. The Chairman and six members are
appointed by the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong SAR Government. Eight are ex-
officio appointments by virtue of their chairmanship of chambers of commerce and
business organisations or government positions. Four are nominated members from
leading business associations. The Council met four times during the financial year
2012/13.
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The Council’s work is supported by a Staff and Finance Committee, whose
membership is drawn from among the senior business representatives on the Council.
The Committee reviews and recommends to the Council on all matters, including
budget estimates, financial management control and accounting procedures. It also
reviews and recommends to the Council on matters of human resource policy, terms
and conditions of employment and the creation and deletion of senior management

positions. The Committee meets four times a year.

The Council’'s Audit Committee assists the Staff and Finance Committee in ensuring
high standards of financial control and compliance. The Committee is chaired by
a Member of the Council, with two further Council Members on the Committee.
The Committee’s responsibility is to direct and advise on the work of the HKTDC
Internal Audit Department, including the annual audit plan, assurance of adequate
audit coverage of internal operations, review of audit findings and monitoring of
implementation of actions arising from the audit reports. The Committee also reviews

the annual audited accounts. The Committee meets two times a year.

Good governance is central to a broader commitment to CSR, which promotes
better and more responsible management. The HKTDC was awarded the HKQAA-
HSBC CSR Advocate Mark in March 2012. As a responsible employer and a leading
trade and services promotion organisation, the HKTDC continues to improve its CSR
practices and policies, as well as contribute to the encouragement of responsible
and sustainable business practices. To demonstrate our continuous commitment
to sustainable development by putting CSR into actual operational practices, we
have continued with initiatives in areas such as energy management, supply chain
management, recycling programmes, caring for the community, the environment and

our staff.
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Finances Bif&shsE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

(Incorporated in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
Ordinance)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council (the “HKTDC") and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) set
out on pages 68 to 112, which comprise the balance sheets of the Group and HKTDC
as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated income and expenditure account, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash
flows and the consolidated statement of changes in funds for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

COUNCIL'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Council of HKTDC is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and Section 23 of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Council determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 24 of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council Ordinance and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of HKTDC and the Group as at 31 March 2013, and of the Group's
surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 6 June 2013
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For the year ended 31 March

e

Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account #x

GRS T

HBZE3A3MBLEZEE
Note
(HK$’ 000) (BT IT) FaE 2013 2012
INCOME WA
Government Subvention from WE S REABMBNBUTER 5 383,867 378,250
Trade Declaration Charge
Income Generated from the Group's AEBE HEREEEERA 2(d)
Operational Activities
— Exhibitions and Missions —B5REg RIHE 1,627,581 1,613,920
— Product Magazines and —EmMEREEEETS 190,517 188,601
Online Marketplace
— HKCEC Operation —BRAERRETLEE 162,977 151,296
— Other Operational Income — HAb WA 38,290 31,414
2,019,365 1,985,231
Investment Income & W 2(h) 83,534 55,915
Interest on Bank Deposits SRITTFEAE 2(d) 5,066 8,420
Miscellaneous Income HMIAW 7,475 6,628
2,115,440 2,056,194
TOTAL INCOME: WA 4B=E 2,499,307 2,434,444
EXPENDITURE ZH
Staff Costs EEKA 2(n) &6 628,249 569,712
Rent and Rates HeREm 19,975 18,109
Other Office Expenses EMEKER 93,087 90,807
Exhibitions and Missions EoHRES KHHE 1,143,403 1,188,723
Other Promotional Activities EMEZESHREEE 357,417 354,587
Trade-related Activities B S EEES 20,007 19,331
Exchange Differences R ERE 2(e) 8,398 (8,310)
Depreciation of HKCEC Atrium BEERREPOPERENE 2(f) 77,510 77,734
Link Extension
Depreciation of Other Property, EHAZE - RERBMZITER
Plant and Equipment and {5 AR B 5N 2(f) & (9) 71,326 65,256
Amortisation of Land Use Rights
Loss/(Gain) on Disposal of Property, HEWE  RERBHV 2EE () 2(f) 56 (32)
Plant and Equipment
TOTAL EXPENDITURE: et <t 2,419,428 2,375,917
Surplus before Finance Costs P& AR &R 79,879 58,527
Finance Costs on Bank Borrowings B8 A 200 & 14 (7,836) (8,044)
Surplus for the Year AEEZ R 72,043 50,483
Transfer to Other Specific Funds BAHMEBETES 19 (112,004) (120,522)
Transfer from General Fund BEeaArLEmES 16 39,961 70,039

68

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &R E FE&RBF R 2012/13

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 4& 2 E U ®

For the year ended 31 March

HE3HA3MBILEZEE
Note
(HK$’ 000) (B#%FT) B E 2013 2012
Surplus for the Year REE R 72,043 50,483
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) ~ Eh 2@z (EH) :
Realisation of Cash Flow Hedges REeRELIPEE 19 14,835 (1,845)
Fair Value Loss on Forward Foreign FHORBIINES DN FEEE 19 (8,839) (3,582)
Currency Contracts at Year End
Fair Value Loss on Interest Rate Swap FIF RIS AT EEER 19 (6,773) (11,253)
Contracts at Year End
Other Comprehensive Expense AFEEEMEEER (777) (16,680)
for the Year
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year AFE 2 mE Kz HE%E 71,266 33,803
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 468 EE

As at 31 March

-~

M3HA31H
Note
(HK$' 000) (BETT) FaE 2013 2012
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, Plant and Equipment W RE MM 7(@a) 1,882,999 1,976,591
Land Use Rights b (s A 8 53,382 54,818
Defined Benefit Retirement HERMBNRETEEE 6(b)(ii) 80,140 88,796
Scheme Assets
2,016,521 2,120,205
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Accounts Receivable, JEWERTE « Al RFBNFIE 10 333,906 270,580
Deposits and Prepayments
Fixed-income and Equity Securities B Wi MR AN TE 5 11 1,621,210 1,516,522
Cash and Bank Balances R& MIBTTHETF 13 755,534 761,650
2,710,650 2,548,752
TOTAL ASSETS BEBE 4,727,171 4,668,957
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERE
Receipts in Advance TR FRIA 15 110,520 145,416
Bank Borrowings IRITEK 14 378,000 450,000
Derivative Financial Instruments PTEERMIA 12 1,355 6,218
489,875 601,634
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accounts Payable, Accruals FERTRRFR - FEETIE B RIBUGRIE 15 1,099,267 1,005,781
and Receipts in Advance
Bank Borrowings IRITEK 14 72,000 72,000
Derivative Financial Instruments PTEERmIA 12 12,249 7,028
1,183,516 1,084,809
TOTAL LIABILITIES BERE 1,673,391 1,686,443
NET ASSETS BEEFE 3,053,780 2,982,514
Financed By: B MR :
GENERAL FUND TEES 16 1,340,965 1,329,097
RESERVE FUND REES 17 1,119,826 1,099,095
EXHIBITION CONTRACTING RERKES 18 146,752 149,577
SERVICES FUND
OTHER SPECIFIC FUNDS HivisEESE 19 446,237 404,745
TOTAL FUNDS BEoEEE 3,053,780 2,982,514

(Signed)
Jack So, GBS, OBE, JP
Chairman of HKTDC

(%)

FELRE<ESRHMEET - OBE» AF#HL>

BBESERELE

The financial statements were approved by the Council on 6 June 2013.

LA B SHEN 2013F6 A6 HAARBEE @A
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(Signed)

The Honourable Andrew Leung, GBS, JP
Chairman of Staff and Finance Committee

(%)
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Balance Sheet EEBEE

As at 31 March

-~

M3A31H
Note
(HK$' 000) (ABEFT) BiE 2013 2012
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, Plant and Equipment YIE - RAE KM 7(b) 1,807,609 1,903,549
Land Use Rights b R 8 53,382 54,818
Investment in and Balances BN B AR R AEHRIIE 9 50,360 68,235
with Subsidiaries
Defined Benefit Retirement AERFRIKRGTEIEE 6(b)(ii) 80,140 88,796
Scheme Assets
1,991,491 2,115,398
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Accounts Receivable, FEWARIA « 7] & RIEN IR 10 341,740 267,380
Deposits and Prepayments
Fixed-income and Equity Securities (] S M B AN R 5 11 1,621,210 1,516,522
Cash and Bank Balances Re MIRITHTT 13 741,368 759,358
2,704,318 2,543,260
TOTAL ASSETS BERE 4,695,809 4,658,658
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREEE
Receipts in Advance TEW R IE 15 110,520 145,416
Bank Borrowings SRITER 14 378,000 450,000
Derivative Financial Instruments TSI A 12 1,355 6,218
489,875 601,634
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Accounts Payable, Accruals FEfTERFX ~ FEETIA B KMIBINGRTE 15 1,094,855 1,009,687
and Receipts in Advance
Bank Borrowings SRITER 14 72,000 72,000
Derivative Financial Instruments TSI A 12 12,249 7,028
1,179,104 1,088,715
TOTAL LIABILITIES BERE 1,668,979 1,690,349
NET ASSETS EEFE 3,026,830 2,968,309
Financed By: BL2RIR
GENERAL FUND TEES 16 1,265,575 1,256,055
RESERVE FUND EEES 17 1,070,163 1,052,373
EXHIBITION CONTRACTING BREREES 18 146,752 149,577
SERVICES FUND
OTHER SPECIFIC FUNDS HfpEES 19 544,340 510,304
TOTAL FUNDS ESHE 3,026,830 2,968,309

(Signed)

Jack So, GBS, OBE, JP
Chairman of HKTDC
(%F)

BEXLLE<ERAMET - OBE > KF#E>

BRESERGLE

The financial statements were approved by the Council on 6 June 2013.

LA FBATEERERN 2013 F6 HF6 B AREESEA

(Signed)

The Honourable Andrew Leung, GBS, JP
Chairman of Staff and Finance Committee

(%#F)

REBRE<TENMEE - KF#HL>

BERUBEZRELSE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 428 IR €37

For the year ended 31 March

mER

HBZE3A3MBLEZEE
(HK$' 000) (B%TFT) 2013 2012
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ESHREES
Surplus for the year KEE R 72,043 50,483
Government Subvention from WE S mAEMEHBUTER (383,867) (378,250)
Trade Declaration Charge
Investment Income KB WS (83,534) (55,915)
Interest on Bank Deposits IRITIFF B (5,066) (8,420)
Finance Costs WFEA 7,836 8,044
Adjustments for items not FRSBEAMNAE
involving the movement of cash:
Depreciation of HKCEC BAGREREROFEREREIINE 77,510 77,734
Atrium Link Extension
Depreciation of Other Property, EHihEE - REMBEM ZITE 71,326 65,256
Plant and Equipment and Ko b {8 AR 2 B 4H
Amortisation of Land Use Rights
Loss/(Gain) on Disposal of Property, HEWE - SEREMZEBE () 56 (32)
Plant and Equipment
Ineffective Portion of Cash Flow Hedge e EEIPREBEMD (419) (593)
Decrease/(Increase) in Defined RERAERKTEIEERD, (1) 8,656 (10,420)
Benefit Retirement Scheme Assets
Increase in Accounts Receivable, FEERTE « 5] RIANFRIELE hn (63,326) (17,285)
Deposits and Prepayments
Increase in Accounts Payable, FERTRRFR - FERTIE B RIBUGRIEIE N 58,590 38,015
Accruals and Receipts in Advance
Net Cash Outflow from Operating Activities BHMREESHFRE R (240,195) (231,383)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREE
Interest on Bank Deposits RITIF R B 5,066 8,420
Addition of Property, Plant and Equipment BEME - ’“1%& =27 (53,884) (52,996)
Proceeds from Disposal of Property, MEME - BB RBMSRIE 20 100
Plant and Equipment
(Increase)/Decrease in Fixed-income (] FE Yz M AR AN RE 5 (3800) /8 > (21,154) 3,110
and Equity Securities
Decrease in Deposits held by Fund RELERAERERANR TR 8,451 1,852
Managers for Investments
Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities AR FEES RN (61,501) (39,514)
Net Cash Outflow before FEESRRATAFRES R (301,696) (270,897)
Financing Activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BT
Government Subvention from WE ZREEMSHBTER 383,867 378,250
Trade Declaration Charge
Repayment of Bank Borrowings EERITER (72,000) (72,000)
Finance Costs B &R (7,836) (8,044)
Net Cash Inflow from Financing Activities B HRRAFRERA 304,031 298,206
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents Be MR EEYIEMN 2,335 27,309
Cash and Cash Equivalents FYRE MRS EEY 660,802 633,493
at beginning of the Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the Year FRIME MRS EEY 663,137 660,802
Analysis of Balances of Cash and HReRASEBYHNEFON
Cash Equivalents:
Cash and Bank Balances e MIRTTHETF 755,534 761,650
Less: Deposits held by Fund Managers B B SIEREERERNRE SR (92,397) (100,848)
for Investments
663,137 660,802
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Funds & &

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3AMBLZEE

,\ AN V] nvu\

BE)R

Note
(HK$'000) (BT T) BsE 2013 2012
Total Funds at the beginning of the Year ~ F¥E&& 4% 2,982,514 2,948,711
Comprehensive Income 2ERE
Surplus for the Year dealt with in the EHREWE REFENAFE Bt 72,043 50,483
Consolidated Income and
Expenditure Account
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) — Hib2mE Uz (EH)
— Realisation of Cash Flow Hedges —IREREEIHEIR 19 14,835 (1,845)
— Fair Value Loss on Forward Foreign —FLERAINES LR EEE 19 (8,839) (3,582)
Currency Contracts at Year End
— Fair Value Loss on Interest Rate Swap —FRF RIS HE NN FEEE 19 (6,773) (11,253)
Contracts at Year End
Total Comprehensive Income for AFEE2EW AR
the Year 71,266 33,803
Total Funds at the end of the Year FIREDREE 3,053,780 2,982,514
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 475 Bt #& 3z = =T

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Hong Kong Trade Development Council (the “"HKTDC") was incorporated in
1966 under the Hong Kong Trade Development Council Ordinance to promote
Hong Kong's external trade in goods and services. The address of its registered
office is 38/F, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements included the financial statements of
HKTDC and its subsidiaries, HKTDC (Japan) Limited and HKTDC Limited
(collectively the “Group”).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and under the historical cost convention,
as modified by investments in fixed-income and equity securities and
derivative financial instruments, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain accounting estimates and assumptions. It also
reguires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. There are areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

During the year, the Group has assessed the new or revised standards,
amendments and improvements to existing standards (collectively the
“new HKFRSs"”) that have come into effect and are considered relevant to
its operations. The Group has adopted such new HKFRSs at their respective
effective dates with no material impact.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &R E FE&RBF R 2012/13

e TS AR AR

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 2.
New HKFRSs which are Not Yet Effective

As at 31 March 2013, the following new HKFRSs which are considered
relevant to the Group's operations, are in issue but not yet effective:

(b)

HKAS 1 Amendment
BB GFERIE 19 (1B A)

HKAS 19 (Revised)
EBSEERIZE 195 (K1EE])
HKAS 27 Amendment
BEGRTERIE 275 (IB5]A)
HKAS 32 Amendment
EBSFERIZE 325 (BETAN)

HKFRS 7 Amendment
BBV BHREENE 758 (BFTA)

HKFRS 9

BB MEERE W

HKFRS 10

BV EWELERE 1058

HKFRS 12

BV EWELERFE 1258

HKFRS 10, 11 and 12 Amendment
ARV RELERFE 1098, F 1158

R E 125 (BRI A)

HKFRS 13
BB B HRELERFE 1398
HKFRSs Amendment

BB EIMERER (BRI A)

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Regarding Other Comprehensive Inocme

MBHmAN2Hm— B E MRS M

Employees Benefits

BTEF

Separate Financial Statements

BN TSk

Financial Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

TRTA: 2En—KEeMEER
THRAE

Financial Instructions: Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

CHITHE: BE-HEeREER
THRAE

Financial Instruments

TRITH

Consolidated Financial Statements

e EEmE

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

FENEMERNER

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of

TESHBE(E)

(b)

Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

REMBHRE  GETHREERNEMER
KR : BIEIES

Fair Value Measurement

AT(EE

Annual Improvements 2011

2011 FFE 2 e

The Group will apply the above new HKFRSs when they become effective.
The Group has already commenced an assessment of the related impact
to the Group. Except for the impact of HKAS 19 (Revised) stated below,
the Group is not yet in a position to state whether any substantial financial
impact will be resulted.

R AE R T B B I R 5 %A
M2013F3A31H  EAREEEEXE
S - BEAMEMKRESINIETE
B R EENNT

Effective from period
beginning on or after
JERBHA

1 January 2013
20131 H1H

1 January 2013
20131 H1H
1 January 2013
20131 H1H
1 January 2014
20141 A1 H

1 January 2015
201541 H1H

1 January 2015
201551 A1H
1 January 2013
20131 H1H
1 January 2013
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(b)

(9

(d)

76

New HKFRSs which are Not Yet Effective (Cont'd)

HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”, was amended in June 2011. The impact
on the Group are to immediately recognise all past service costs and to
replace interest cost and expected return on plan assets with a net interest
amount that is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit assets/liabilities. The Group is yet to assess the full impact of the
amendments.

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

A subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains/losses on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In HKTDC's own balance sheet, the investment in the subsidiaries is stated
at cost less provision for impairment loss.

Income Recognition

Income generated from exhibitions and missions, and trade publications
(product magazines and online marketplace) is recognised when the
relevant exhibition or mission is held and the relevant trade publication is
published. Government subvention is recognised in the specific fiscal year
as approved by the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “HKSAR Government”). Income generated from HKCEC
Operation and other operational income is recognised when services are
rendered. The recognition of investment income is set out in note 2(h).
Interest on bank deposits is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(e)

Foreign Currencies Translation

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is HKTDC's functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expended in the Consolidated Income and
Expenditure Account during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates sufficient to write
off their cost over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis at the
following annual rates:

Leasehold land classified as
finance lease

Shorter of remaining lease term
and useful life

Office buildings and staff quarters 2%

Furniture, equipment and fittings  20% to 33-1/3%

Motor vehicles and vessels 25%

Leasehold improvements Over the unexpired lease periods
HKCEC Atrium Link Extension

Over the unexpired operating periods

Operating assets and exhibition
stand systems

Over the number of years ranging
from two to eight for which the
assets are expected to be used
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

()

(9)

(h)

Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd)
No depreciation is provided for freehold land. No depreciation is provided
for assets under construction until they are completed and ready for use.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date. Where the carrying amount of an
asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount and are dealt with in the Consolidated Income and
Expenditure Account.

Land Use Rights

Land use rights represent operating lease prepayment for land less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of operating
lease prepayment for land over the remaining lease term.

Fixed-income and Equity Securities

Fixed-income and equity securities including fixed-income securities,
equity securities and financial derivatives are stated at fair value at the
balance sheet date. The fair values of quoted investments are based on
current bid prices. The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that
are based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date.
Investment income comprising interest, gain or loss on disposal of
securities, and any increase or decrease in portfolio valuation net of fees
and charges is recognised in the Consolidated Income and Expenditure
Account.

Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade-
date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

TESHBEE)

(f)

(9

(h)

M - REBRJ[AM (E)

KA L TMREITE R - £
EMER TR EES M A IR e
PrELEE -

BEENNREENIERFHESE
FREBETRN  MEEEHHE -
FREEMREERRE G ATKRE
EBE  HEEEENRBRETRES
o

BENHEEEMEENRBIZE
ERERIERARTMENZRE - E4
B R AER

L it A
T30 R ETE S TR TR R
R 2TEEHEOREBE - WAER
ERHSTEO SR EHE TR
B FRA

[E] E W 28 B IR A 7 55

B T W i B B AN 38 5 B 9 L E M a
& BRAFSRERITEY - THiRF
BERFEIE - BHREZRENAS
FEREERNEREH - AR
TSR T AN GETEARERE
AREBRBZRINELRIBFERD
MIGERIEHRE - REREBIEF
B HEEFBRARINRREERE
X EA MERERE - W ELR
B RAER

—RERENBARKEER S AE
R-RXBHBAEEAEBAILE
ZEEZR - EIRBRERERERE
MM EMILCEE  MAK
B AN ATA R R E R E R
BEERET  IREAR LR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &R E FE&RBF R 2012/13

e TS AR AR

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of Investments in Subsidiaries and Non-financial Assets
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows or cash-
generating units. Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments include forward foreign currency and
interest rate swap contracts which are designated as effective cash flow
hedges. The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as
its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in cash flows of hedged items. Forward foreign currency and interest
rate swap contracts are initially recognised at fair value at inception
and subsequently re-measured at their fair value, using quoted forward
exchange rates and interest rates at the balance sheet date.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the cash flow hedges
which results in gains or losses is recognised in other comprehensive
income and the Hedging Reserve. Any gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Income
and Expenditure Account. Amounts accumulated in the Hedging Reserve
are transferred to the Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account in
the periods when the hedged items are expended. However, when the
hedged items result in the recognition of non-financial assets or liabilities,
the gains and losses previously deferred in the Hedging Reserve are
transferred to the cost of the asset or liability.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or
loss existing in the Hedging Reserve at that time remains in equity and
is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in
the Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gains or losses
that were reported in the Hedging Reserve are immediately transferred to
the Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

(m)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, time deposits held with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into cash.

Borrowings and Borrowing Costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the Consolidated Income and
Expenditure Account over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Loan interest and other borrowing costs are charged to the Consolidated
Income and Expenditure Account except for those interest costs which are
capitalised as part of the cost of construction of a qualifying asset during
the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale.

Income Tax
HKTDC is exempted under Section 87 of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Ordinance from all taxes payable under the Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B #& 3R &R M=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(n)

Employee Benefit

0]

(ii)

(iii)

Defined Benefit Retirement Scheme

The Group operates a defined benefit retirement scheme which
provides retirement benefits linked to final salaries for its employees
who have been members of the scheme before 1 December 2000.
The assets of the scheme are held by a trustee separately from those
of the Group and are invested through an investment adviser.

The Group recognises the excess or shortfall in the fair value of
scheme assets over retirement benefit obligations together with
adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses, as net
assets or net liabilities in the balance sheets. The benefit obligations
are calculated by estimating the amount of future payments that
members have earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods. Future payments are discounted at a rate equivalent to
the yield at the balance sheet date on high-quality bonds that have
maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s retirement
benefit obligations to determine the present value. Cumulative
unrecognised actuarial gains or losses in excess of 10% of the
greater of the fair value of the scheme assets and the present value
of the defined-benefit obligations are amortised over the average
remaining service lives of members of the scheme. Otherwise
the actuarial gains or losses are not recognised. The calculations
are performed by an independent, qualified actuary using the
"Projected Unit Credit Method".

Defined Contribution Retirement Scheme

The Group also operates a defined contribution retirement scheme
for employees who have joined the Group’s services after 1
December 2000 in compliance with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance. The Group’s contributions to the Mandatory Provident
Fund are expended as incurred. For certain overseas employees,
the Group also contributed to respective local defined contribution
retirement schemes.

Employee Leave Entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period. Employee entitlements to sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Operating Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
the assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases are expended on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when either a legal or constructive obligation,
as a result of a past event, exists at the balance sheet date and where the
amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.

Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
provision for impairment. If the collection of receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Payables

Payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-currrent liabilities.

Related Parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if the party has the
ability, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over the Group in making
financial and operating policy decision, and vice versa. For the purpose
of these financial statements, transactions between the Group and the
HKSAR Government departments, agencies or HKSAR Government
controlled entities, other than those transactions such as payment of
rent and rates, fees etc, that arise in the normal dealings between the
HKSAR Government and the Group, are considered to be related party
transactions.
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HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &R E FE&RBF R 2012/13

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(t)

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as a
provision.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial Risk Factors

(a) Investment Risk and Credit Risk
The Group adopts a prudent and conservative investment policy
approved by the HKSAR Government. The management regularly
monitors the fair value of the investments and performance of the
portfolios reported by the Fund Managers on a quarterly basis. The
Group's investment portfolio consists mostly of fixed income and
equity securities. As at 31 March 2013, most of the fixed income
securities had high credit ratings of A- or above as measured by
Standard & Poor’s or equivalent. In addition, the Group has closely
monitored the performance of their investments in equity securities.
The Group’s investment portfolio is also exposed to certain price
risk of equity securities which are diversified globally. The foreign
currency exposures in debt instruments are managed using financial
derivatives.

The Group engaged an external consultant to measure the risk
exposure of its investment portfolio at the balance sheet date by
adopting value-at-risk approach. It is a measurement of volatility
taking into account the historical and forecast returns, expected
standard deviation and correlation of the asset classes in the
investment portfolio. With a 95% confidence level, it is measured
that the maximum likely loss of the investment portfolio is HK$51
million (2012: HK$45 million) over a one-month period. The overall
risk exposure is considered minimal.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)

3.1

Financial Risk Factors (Cont’d)

(a)

(@

Investment Risk and Credit Risk (Cont’d)

The Group only places liquid funds with reputable banks with sound
credit rating. The Group does not expect any losses from non-
performance by the banks. As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s placed
deposits in banks with short-term credit ratings of A-1 or above as
measured by Standards & Poor’s or equivalent. The Group is also
exposed to credit risk in relation to trade and other receivables. The
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amounts
of these financial assets. To manage this risk, the management has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the management reviews
regularly the recoverable amount of each individual trade receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment is made for the irrecoverable
amounts. The credit risk is considered minimal.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group carries out some promotional activities in overseas
countries and the related expenditure is principally paid in foreign
currencies. Forward foreign currency contracts are entered into
for hedging foreign currency payments and foreign exchange risk
exposure is considered minimal. For the exchange risk between
United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar, it is considered to be
minimal because Hong Kong dollar is pegged to Untied States
dollar.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group has interest-bearing assets, mainly, time deposits. During
the year, if the interest rate on the time deposits had been 100
basis points per annum higher or lower with all other variables held
constant, interest income would have been HK$5.1 million (2012:
HK$5.3 million) higher or lower.

Other than the portion of bank loans hedged by the interest rate
swaps, the Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from floating
rate borrowings. During the year, if interest rate on the bank loans
had been 100 basis points higher or lower with all other variables
held constant, interest costs incurred would have been HK$1.9
million (2012: HK$2.6 million) higher or lower.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B #& 3R &R M=

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3. R ERE (&)
3.1 Financial Risk Factors (Cont'd) 3.1 H¥EREEGE)
(d) Liquidity Risk (d) REBESEK
The Group maintains sufficient cash and liquid assets including REBABERZFTEHRSFRA
marketable securities to finance its operations and is not exposed to MOEERREBEREFERE
significant liquidity risk. Balances due within 12 months equal their BES B AKEN AT
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant. BEANSE SRR - BRAER
VREDK B E+T A
WEER R A5 AR S BRI E ©
The following tables provide the undiscounted cash flows of UTFHEEMBEENRRE
significant financial liabilities: ANRERE -
Total
Within 1 Between Between contractual
year or Tand 2and Over undiscounted
on demand 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flow
x 0l
18T AEBRH
(HK$'000) (B&TT) g 1E2ER 2ESER SENE  HRSHE
() TheGroup 150
At31.3.2013 R2013F3A318
Accounts payable, accruals and JERHES - ERDEE R
other payables HEAER 464,353 - - - 464,353
Bank borrowings BIEH 79,501 75,167 221,190 90,498 466,356
Derivative financial instruments iTEeRIA
- Outflow —%ii 338,373 1,665 - - 340,038
- Inflow -lE (326,063) (287) - - (326,350)
Accounts payable, accruals and JEfTHR - EEEAR
other payables EfERER 408,950 - - - 408,950
Bank borrowings BITER 80,646 79,854 225,834 164,030 550,364
Derivative financial instruments ik
- Outflow ~%ii 390,057 8,268 - - 398,325
- Inflow -lm (383,000) (1,916) - - (384,916)
(i) HKTDC iR
At313.2013 R2013F3A31H
Accounts payable, accruals and FERHES - ERDEE R
other payables EfERER 460,033 - - - 460,033
Bank borrowings BITEH 79,501 75,167 221,190 90,498 466,356
Derivative financial instruments iTEeRIA
- Outflow —%ii 338,373 1,665 - - 340,038
- Intflow -lE (326,063) (287) - - (326,350)
At 31.3.2012 R2012F3A318
Accounts payable, accruals and R EEAR
other payables EfEAER 413,281 - - - 413,281
Bank borrowings BITER 80,646 79,854 225,834 164,030 550,364
Derivative financial instruments ik
- Outflow ~%ii 390,057 8,268 - - 398,325
- Inflow -hm (383,000) (1,916) - - (384,916)
85



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4z

3.

86

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)

3.2

Capital Management

The Group's capital consists of the General Fund, Reserve Fund, Exhibition
Contracting Services Fund and Other Specific Funds, which are set up
for various designated purposes as described in notes 16 to 19. The
Group’s capital also consists of bank borrowings. It is the Group’s
objective to maintain sufficient Reserve Fund and bank borrowing
balances to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to support its current and future capital and operating expenditure
requirements.

In order to maintain the capital structure, the Group obtains funding
arrangement through Government subvention agreed between HKTDC
and the HKSAR Government as set out in note 5 and bank borrowings as
set out in note 14.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-current
borrowings as shown in the Consolidated Balance Sheet) divided by total
capital. Total capital comprises total borrowings plus total funds as shown
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

3.

BB HwARME

B EMEIE (F)
32 ExER
AEBESBELEBES RHEE

T RERBESMNEMKEES -

HEBEEREDFHIINMKE16219
N AEBESTBRERITER - K
SEBN#BEARBESRRTE
R ERAEEREFELERREHRR
BEARESCAREEERNMAE -

BTHBEREE FAEBESKR
HEE BRI OE B TR E 2 BT
FoFBERMES RERITER G
ERMEE14 -

AEBIRBEBELRERER - i
XRREFER (BREFEERE
RFFPIRE KIEREBE) RIAE
TEE - IRABERBERAIINER
RBERETRBNESRE -

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, the Group's gearing ratio was as follows: 20134 K£201243A318 - KEE
BWaELENT

(HK$'000) (BETIT) 2013 2012

Total borrowings BREsE 450,000 522,000

Total funds BEoMBE 3,053,780 2,982,514

Total capital EARIBRE 3,503,780 3,504,514

Gearing ratio BELE 12.8% 14.9%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.3

SRR

3. BBERERE(E

Fair Value Estimation 3.3 AFEME
Financial instruments that are measured in the balance sheet at fair value eRIAEEERBEREATE
required disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following 2 HRER TN AT ERER
fair value measurement hierarchy: BATERE
. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or . HFEES B EEERT IS
liabilities (level 1). WME CREFE) (B—45) -
. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are . RTE-RANFMBEENRE
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) SN ZEENBEAERES
or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). WEAMEE - TimeEE (B
MERE) S (AR B ER)
(EBEZMA) °
. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable . BEENEBENE B IEKIEA
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). B @JE’JFH%%M‘“ (BPm] &R
FIFENEE) (BE=&5) -
The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities that were TREATKNEEEENEEKR20134F
measured at fair value as at 31 March 2013 and 2012: N2012F3A31BFtENAFE
Level 1 Level 2 Total
(HK$"000) (B&FT) B gt 3] ma
31 March 2013
Assets BE
Fixed-income and Equity Securities B E W e R iR AN 1,614,004 7,206 1,621,210
Liabilities a8
Derivative Financial Instruments THESHMIA = 13,604 13,604
31 March 2012
Assets BE
Fixed-income and Equity Securities (& TE U s M IR AN 7R 55 1,516,522 - 1,516,522
Liabilities &8fE
Derivative Financial Instruments PTESRT A - 13,246 13,246
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)

3.3

Fair Value Estimation (Cont’d)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1. Instruments of the Group included in
level 1 are fixed-income and equity securities.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques authorise the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

o Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

o The fair value of interest rate swap contracts is calculated as
the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves.

o The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined
using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the
resulting value discounted back to present value.

° Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to
determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

BB HwARME

3. BBERERE(E)

3.3

N FEMF ()

HERMSEXZNEMTANRFE
BREFEANTISHRESIR - BHE
FIBNES FE AR H T 5 - A HHTE -
BHIA - FRAATLT - REREEESL
EERERES MRERELRER
FRGEEETHEEMNERMER
2 BB RRRER - AEEFKH
MERMEENTSRER/ERENR
B WETABRE AR - EE—
RPN T A E B R EE Wt MERAE
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The management makes estimates based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Impairment of HKCEC Atrium Link Extension

The impairment assessment of HKCEC Atrium Link Extension involves significant
accounting estimates. HKTDC tests whether the carrying value of the HKCEC
Atrium Link Extension has suffered any impairment in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2(i). The recoverable amount of the asset
is determined based on discounted cash flow projections which have been
developed based on projected growth rate, discount rate, etc as estimated and
approved by the management. As at 31 March 2013, if the projected growth
rate and the discount rate applied had been 1% lower and higher respectively
with all other variables held constant, the estimated recoverable amount would
still be higher than the carrying value of the HKCEC Atrium Link Extension.

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTION FROM TRADE DECLARATION CHARGE

In accordance with the funding arrangement agreed between HKTDC and the
HKSAR Government for the financial years ended 31 March 2008 to 2012,
Government subvention payable to HKTDC will be determined having regard
to the HKSAR Government's financial position, HKTDC's funding requirements
and by way of reference to a ceiling set at 60% of the total amount of trade
declaration charge received in the preceding year but in any case will not be
less than the subvention level for the year ended 31 March 2007. It was then
extended to the financial year ended 31 March 2013.

In February 2012, HKTDC was advised by the HKSAR Government that the
amount of Government subvention from the trade declaration charge payable to
HKTDC for the year ended 31 March 2013 would be HK$383.87 million (2012:
HK$378.25 million), and that there would be no subsequent reconciliation with
the actual receipts from the trade declaration charge. Of the total appropriation
of HK$383.87 million, HK$20.01 million (2012: HK$19.33 million) was used
to fund trade-related activities organised by The Hong Kong Shippers’ Council,
the Hong Kong/Japan Business Co-operation Committee and the Governmental
Relations Service, and the balance of HK$363.86 million (2012: HK$358.92
million) was applied to fund the activities directly under the Group.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B #& 3R &R M=
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STAFF COSTS
The total amount of staff costs (including directors’ pay and allowances)

BERA

REFERERANERE (B2 R =

comprises: BN :

(HK$'000) (BEFIT) 2013 2012

Staff salaries and discretionary EEH e REVISERIRE BN 477,832 444,986
performance pay

Accommodation and other 78 R H AR R EB BB 116,570 111,588
allowances, and staff-related
expenses

Retirement benefit expenses RIREF X 33,847 13,138

628,249 569,712

(a) Directors’ Pay and Allowances
The directors are key management of the Group and include the Executive
Director, Deputy Executive Directors and Assistant Executive Directors.

(@) BRERFYRIZE
BEBDAEEEIEETEAS 84
RE - BB REIRRE  EAFE

o

Their total salaries and allowances for the year were as follows: e KoRRLOT
2013 2012
Executive Other
Director Directors Total Total
(HK$' 000) (BT T) HiBBE B FEE]
Salaries and discretionary e RMIBERR 13,007 18,169 15,585
performance pay B GO
Accommodation and other 78 e H A j2Af - 3,318 4,963 4,121
allowances, retirement RIRER K
benefit and staff-related B TiERE H
expenses
16,325 23,132 19,706

The salaries and discretionary performance pay for all directors of the
Group fell within the following ranges:

XN FRESBENT & RBBER
WEHOFHHAR T :

2013 2012
No. of No. of
Directors Directors
BERAE FEES RPN

Hong Kong Dollars B
1,000,000 or below 1,000,000 A T~ - 1
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001 £ 1,500,000 - —
1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,500,001 £ 2,000,000 1 1
2,000,001 to 2,500,000 2,000,001 £ 2,500,000 1 1
2,500,001 to 3,000,000 2,500,001 % 3,000,000 1 2
3,000,001 to 3,500,000 3,000,001 £ 3,500,000 2 -
3,500,001 to 4,000,000 3,500,001 2 4,000,000 - -
4,000,001 to 4,500,000 4,000,001 2 4,500,000 - -
4,500,001 to 5,000,000 4,500,001 2 5,000,000 - 1
5,000,001 to 5,500,000 5,000,001 £ 5,500,000 1 -
6 6

6.

STAFF COSTS (Cont'd)

(@)

Directors’ Pay and Allowances (Cont'd)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B #& 3R &R M=

6. EERA (&)

(a)

During the year, the Chairman and Council members of the Group did not

receive any remuneration for their services rendered to the Group (2012:

BB & 2R (&)
RAER  AREEFREEEKE
15) 8 A L () 7 S B4R A AR 745 T M ER A

Nil). AIE & (2012F /& : 4&)
Retirement Benefit Scheme — Defined Benefit Retirement Scheme (b) RABFFE -REBAEBNKETE
(HK$'000) (BEFT) 2013 2012
() Retirement benefit expenses EHRE W RIERBBRINEFNZLAT
recognised in the Consolidated
Income and Expenditure Account
were as follows:
Current service cost & BRARE A A 37,131 29,073
Interest cost SN %N 9,719 17,195
Net actuarial losses recognised RERNERRIEE FE18 17,229 -
during the year
Expected return on scheme assets FTEIEERIERTE R (40,776) (42,297)
23,303 3,971
(i) Net assets recognised in the Balance HEEBERERANFEERIA
Sheets and represented by the BAREFEESREROT ¢
Retirement Benefit Scheme Fund
were as follows:
Fair value of scheme assets as SEIEENFREEHNATE 737,534 677,382
at the end of the year
Present value of benefit obligations BHETNFREEHNIRE (876,380) (818,613)
as at the end of the year
Deficit At (138,846) (141,231)
Unrecognised net actuarial losses RERIBE R ERE 218,986 230,027
Net assets in the balance sheets TEEBERERNFEE 80,140 88,796
(i)  Movement in the fair value of scheme  #EIEEMNAFEZSHIT ¢
assets of the year was as follows:
At the beginning of the year F4 677,382 707,146
Expected return on scheme assets FHEIEERNTEHIRE R 40,776 42,297
Actual employer contributions BB EEHRR 14,647 14,391
Actual employee contributions EREEMH-N 8,137 7,995
Actual benefits paid EREER (21,989) (47,972)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on scheme AEIEEMBERE(BE) 18,581 (46,475)
assets
At the end of the year FR 737,534 677,382
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STAFF COSTS (Cont'd) 6. EERA (4F)
(b) Retirement Benefit Scheme — Defined Benefit Retirement Scheme (b) EBARBRFE-REBFERIKEE
(Cont’d) (&)
(HK$' 000) (BT 2013 2012
(iv)  Movement in the present value of BHETHREZSOT :
benefit obligations of the year
was as follows:
At the beginning of the year F4) 818,613 649,919
Current service cost & BRARAS A AS 37,131 29,073
Interest cost F BN 9,719 17,195
Actual employee contributions BB ES HR 8,137 7,995
Actual benefits paid EREEF (21,989) (47,972)
Actuarial losses on benefit obligations ~ @F|ETHIEEE IR 24,769 162,403
At the end of the year FR 876,380 818,613

(9

(v)  The actual return on scheme assets for the year was at a gain of
HK$59.36 million (2012: at a loss of HK$4.18 million).

REEFEEENERRRAES
JBIES 9368 7T (20124F E - J[HIEB

4188 7L) °
2013 2012
(vi)  The principal actuarial assumptions M3 A3 AMERANFEZREREZNT
used as at 31 March were as follows:
Discount rate IraEx 1.0% 1.2%
Expected rate of return on scheme FTEIE ERTE AR R 6.0% 6.0%
assets
Expected rate of future salary increase AR F M FEHRIE KR 4.0% 4.0%
(vii) The scheme assets were composed of: &I EED R T :
Equities [f& 738 % 55.4% 53.5%
Fixed-income securities Bl Enties 44.6% 46.2%
Cash and other net assets ReMEMFEE 0.0% 0.3%
100.0% 100.0%

(viii) The expected return on scheme assets is based on market
expectation of long term return of the investment portfolio as a
whole, net of administration costs.

(ix)  The expected Group's contributions to the defined benefit scheme
for the year ending 31 March 2014 are HK$14.26 million.

Retirement Benefit Scheme - Defined Contribution Retirement (c)
Schemes

During the year, the Group’s contributions to the Defined Contribution
Retirement Schemes amounted to HK$10.54 million (2012: HK$9.17

million).

AEEENEMOBREEERE
ME (MBRREERR) WTISEME
HAEI ¥R

HRE E201438310 ILEE -
HATEMT B NIERERI BB

i —

1,426 7T °
RIRERGHE - REEFCR KT S
RAER - AEBEREHRFERAKE

E
2 H 1 3R B 61,0548 7T (20124
£ BEBNTET) -
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. VI RERSBM
(@) The Group (a) *&HE
Furniture, Operating
HKCEC Land, Office  Equipment, Motor  Assets and
Atrium Buildings  Fitting and Vehicles  Exhibition
Link and Staff ~ Leasehold and Stand
Extension Quarters Improvements Vessels Systems Total
B
BRERE i R EE KeEE
REHRL HWEEBF REEET "E kRE
(HK$'000) (BBTL) TERE RBEES AE#EE R BuLE Lk
2012/13
Cost RiE
At 1.4.2012 R2012F4818 1,481,419 778,808 423,669 5,080 136,970 2,825,946
Additions b = = 35,571 800 17,513 53,884
Disposals HE - - (9,623) - (4,732) (14,355)
At 31.3.2013 R2013F3731H 1,481,419 778,808 449,617 5,880 149,751 2,865,475
Accumulated Depreciation ZBME
At 1.4.2012 201264518 232,653 187,308 307,604 3,976 117,814 849,355
Depreciation of HKCEC EEEBERETL 77,510 - - - - 77,510
Atrium Link Extension HEERITE
Depreciation of Other Hi% - Rk - 14,135 44,815 462 10,478 69,890
Property, Plant and ENHME
Equipment
Depreciation written HEREE - - (9,613) - (4,666) (14,279)
back on Disposals
At 31.3.2013 2013F3A318 310,163 201,443 342,806 4,438 123,626 982,476
Net Book Value REEE
At 31.3.2013 M2013F3A318 1,171,256 577,365 106,811 1,442 26,125 1,882,999
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 7. Y - RERESEM () 7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 7. Y12 - RERSBM ()
(@) The Group (Cont'd) (a) &M () (b) HKTDC (b) *=F
Furniture, Operating Furniture, Operating
HKCEC  land, Office  Equipment, Motor Assets and HKCEC Land, Office  Equipment, Motor  Assets and
Atrium Buildings Fitting and Vehicles Exhibition Atrium Buildings  Fitting and Vehicles  Exhibition
Link and Staff Leasehold and Stand Link and Staff  Leasehold and Stand
Extension Quarters  Improvements Vessels Systems Total Extension Quarters Improvements Vessels Systems Total
A R
EhgH T R RE REZE ] T R RE gegE
RERL HEREBT REEET "E kRS BEHL  HEREF REEER "E KRE
(HK$'000) (BT hEER  MBEES NEEE KA BusE o (HK$'000) (BT TEREE RBEEE AEEE R#:M Bu%E ko
201112 2012113
Cost RE Cost RE
At1.4.2011 R201ME47818 1,479,154 763,884 407,152 4,742 130,592 2,785,524 TAL14.2012 R2012%4518 1,481,419 699,189 413,305 5,080 136,970 2,735,963
Additions EE 2,265 14,924 25,459 638 9,710 52,996 Additions e _ _ 32,342 800 17,513 50,655
Disposals HE - - (8,942) (300) (3332) (12,574) Disposals e - - (9,668) - (4,732) (14,400)
AL31.32012 R2012%F34318 1ABLAIS  7UBB08 423,669 >80 136970 2825946 At3132013 R2013%34318 1481419 699189 435979 5880 149751 2772218
Accumulated Depreciation ZBME Accumulated Depreciation ZEME
At 1.4.2011 R201F4/18 154,919 173,790 274,206 3,840 113,552 720,307 At142012 R012%E4518 232,653 180,388 297,583 3,976 117,814 832,414
Depreciation of HKCEC FERARRTD 71,734 - - - - T Depreciation of HKCEC BEEHREND 71510 - - - S 0
Atrium Link Extension PERENNE Atrium Link Extension FERENNE
Depreciation of Other Siph - ZBR - 13,518 42330 436 7,536 63,820 Depreciation of Other Efbz  RER - 13,741 44,293 462 10,478 68,974
Property, Plant and EME Property, Plant and EMmE
Equipment Equipment
Depreciation written back HEEER - - (8,932) (300) (3,274) (12,506) Depreciation written back BEREE N 5 9,623) _ (4,666) (14,289)
on Disposals on Disposals
AL313.2012 Ra23318 232653 187308 307,604 3976 117814 8435 At313.2013 R2013%3A318 310163 194129 332253 4438 123626 964,609
Net Book Value BEFE Net Book Value REZE
At31.3.2012 M2012%3A318 1,248,766 591,500 116,065 1,104 19,156 1,976,591 At313.2013 RH201353831R 1,171,256 505,060 103,726 1,482 26,125 1,807,609
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HKTDC (Cont'd)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

7. WE - RERSIM GE)

(b) A= (&)

Furniture, Operating
HKCEC  land, Officc  Equipment, Motor  Assetsand
Atrium Buildings Fitting and Vehicles Exhibition
Link and Staff Leasehold and Stand
Extension Quarters  Improvements Vessels Systems Total
A
EhgE T R EE ReBE
EERL  HEREF RHEEETF "E REE
(HK$'000) (B%BF) hEER  MBERES REESE Refih BusE ik
201112
Cost RiE
At1.4.2011 R2011F4R18 1,479,154 684,265 396,888 4,742 130,592 2,695,641
Additions gE 2,265 14,924 25,359 638 9,710 52,896
Disposals HE - - (8,942) (300) (3.332) (12,574)
At31.3.2012 R201263A31R 1,481,419 699,189 413,305 5,080 136,970 2,735,963
Accumulated Depreciation 2NE
At1.4.2011 R2011F4/18 154,919 167,263 264,462 3,840 113,552 704,036
Depreciation of HKCEC BECZRERL 77,734 - - - - 77,734
Atrium Link Extension HERRANTE
Depreciation of Other HEivE - SER - 13,125 42,053 436 7,536 63,150
Property, Plant and EMNE
Equipment
Depreciation written back HERED - - (8,932) (300) (3,274) (12,506)
on Disposals
At31.3.2012 R2012F3 4311 232,653 180,388 297,583 3,976 117,814 832,414
Net Book Value EHFE
At31.3.2012 M2012%3A318 1,248,766 518,801 115,722 1,104 19,156 1,903,549
LAND USE RIGHTS 8. T b f5F A #E

The Group's interests in land use rights in Hong Kong and outside of Hong Kong

represent prepaid operating lease payments. Their net book values are analysed

REBEPRES REEAIM IR L 360
RS EBNEERENR - AREFE

as follows: ST :
The Group/HKTDC
REEEF

(HK$"000) (BEETIT) 2013 2012
On leases of between 30 to 61 years  FA%I30ZE 614

(2012: 30 to 61 years) (2012%FF : 302 614) 53,382 54,818
At beginning of the year FH) 54,818 56,254
Amortisation i (1,436) (1,436)
At end of the year FR 53,382 54,818

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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INVESTMENT IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES

pA

n

R e B AR R

HKTDC
N
(HK$'000) (BEEFIT) 2013 2012
Unlisted shares, at cost E LR - A 22,800 22,800
Loan to a subsidiary ERTHBAA 52,600 60,600
75,400 83,400
Less: Impairment Bk : RE (25,040) (15,165)
50,360 68,235
Amount due from a subsidiary i NG e 11,795 678
Amount due to the subsidiary FEATHT B A RIRIA (903) (8,574)

(a)

HKTDC (Japan) Limited

HKTDC's wholly-owned subsidiary, HKTDC (Japan) Limited, was
incorporated in Hong Kong and holds a property in Japan which is leased
to HKTDC.

The authorised and paid-up share capital of HKTDC (Japan) Limited directly
held by HKTDC as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 was HK$22,800,000,
divided into 22,800,000 shares of HK$1 each.

The loan to HKTDC (Japan) Limited is unsecured, has no fixed terms of
repayment, denominated in Hong Kong dollars, and, for the year ended
31 March 2013, interest was charged at a rate of 1.6% per annum (2012:
1.7% per annum) and the carrying amount at the year end approximates
its fair value.

The amount due to HKTDC (Japan) Limited is unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand. The carrying amount at the year end is included
in “Accounts Payable, Accruals and Receipts in Advance” in the balance
sheet and the balance approximates its fair value, is denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.

(a)

HKTDC (Japan) Limited
KBHZ &M E A FHKTDC (Japan)
Limited & BTEMK L - B AFA
—HEETARNWE -

20133 A31H k20126331
B ° HKTDC (Japan) Limited®))E E &
BRRAEEE22808TL D AT
BEEBSEITHRG A H£2,2808
& BAEBRA -

B FHKTDC (Japan) Limited & £ 3K
- BETERE BB REN
W B E2013F3A31H L FEIRF
FIR1 6B E (2012FE  1.7E) »
HIEmMESEAQAFEES -

JETHKTDC (Japan) Limited U8 & £
B RERFREER - FRE
HEBEIEEEABRPHNENIE
o FEFTIEE RBWHRIEIA - A&
REABE BB BENF(EE
=,

97



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 475 Bt #& 3z = =T

9.
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(b)

INVESTMENT IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 9. REWE R REHRIE (&)
HKTDC Limited (b) BBEBFERAF
HKTDC's wholly-owned subsidiary, HKTDC Limited, was incorporated in AEHE2EMBRAREABERER
Hong Kong to carry out promotional activities and has established two ANREBRBEMK Y SEHEERS
branches, Design Gallery shops outside Hong Kong and two wholly- HINE 5 - WREBEBIAINERSL T M
foreign owned enterprises in The People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). RATMZ R - UERPEAR
HAE ([ EL) B E SN B E 1
o,
The authorised share capital of HKTDC Limited as at 31 March 2013 and 20133 H31H &2012F3 A31
2012 was HK$100,000,000, divided into 100,000,000 shares of HK$1 A BB ERERAANNETER
each. The issued and paid-up capital of HKTDC Limited directly held by REBEIET  DAESREBESE
HKTDC as at 31 March 2013 was HK$1 (2012: HK$1). 1T H B 1 & FERL - 201343
A318 - BT REBRRAREEIT
(20125 : B¥17T) - BIARBHEA -
The amount due from HKTDC Limited is unsecured, interest free and EREEAEERERAGIRERRE
repayable on demand. The carrying amount at the year end is included in T RS RFEREER - FRER
“ Accounts Receivable, Deposits and Prepayments” in the balance sheet HEDRIEEEBERPIEKE
and the balance approximates its fair value, is denominated in Hong Kong HF e hBNRIEBIA - SEHNEE
dollars. HENFEEEWABERERML -
Details of the wholly-foreign owned enterprises of HKTDC Limited as at 31 MR2013F3A3 BB REERBERA
March 2013 are as follows: AN E R ENFBNT
Place of Particulars of
Incorporation Registered and Interest
Name and Operations Paid Up Capital Held Directly ~ Principal Activities
% MR R EE R ERITRBEER EERERE TEXR
HK$
Guangzhou Gang Mao Consultancy PRC 3,460,000 100%  Consultancy and business support
and Management Company Limited
BMEEHAEEERAR HE HARBESE
HKTDC Design Gallery (Guangdong) PRC 12,320,000 100%  Wholesale and retail
Trading Company Limited
BN (ER)BEERAA HE HETE

10.
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 10. FEWRE T2 RBEMNRE
The Group HKTDC
r%EH Z
(HK$"000) (B%T7T) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Accounts receivable FEUBRTA 105,132 96,134 104,743 95,006
Deposits and prepayments HEFSSENE/CE 177,683 137,934 174,575 135,738
Other receivables H b e W AR 18 51,091 36,512 62,422 36,636
333,906 270,580 341,740 267,380
The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable was as follows: JEWARTE R BRER AT AN T -
The Group HKTDC
TEE wE
(HK$'000) (BETT) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Performing — within credit term EEHIRIAR 100,170 94,608 99,781 93,480
Balances past due but not MERETNERRE
impaired VAR
- Up to three months —=EAzxAT 4,275 1,520 4,275 1,520
— Three to six months —=ZXEA 1 6 11 6
— More than six months —ZHNMER 676 - 676 -
105,132 96,134 104,743 95,006
The amounts which were past due but not impaired relate to a number of BEENFREN YRR 2HEE R
independent customers that have good track records and no history of default. RERNEERANBIEF AR -
The carrying amounts of accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments, which FEWERIE « AT & RIEMRIBMREE EE
approximate their fair values, were denominated in the following currencies: NEERE U THEBAER -
The Group HKTDC
rEHE xH
(HK$'000) (B¥FT) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Hong Kong dollars Nodisd 302,825 247,826 314,621 245,666
Euro BT 9,317 8,874 9,317 8,874
United States dollars ETT 8,124 5,234 8,124 5,234
Other foreign currencies HAb N 13,640 8,646 9,678 7,606
333,906 270,580 341,740 267,380
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12.
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FIXED-INCOME AND EQUITY SECURITIES

1. BEWRZERBRAES

The Group/HKTDC
AEEREF
(HK$' 000) (BT ) 2013 2012
Fixed-income Securities [EE W78 55 1,177,039 1,140,130
Equity Securities fRAFE 5 436,965 376,409
Financial Derivatives EROTED 7,206 (17)
1,621,210 1,516,522

The fixed-income and equity securities are designated and accounted for as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and United States dollars. Changes in fair value of fixed-income
and equity securities are recorded in “Investment Income” in the Consolidated
Income and Expenditure Account.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

BEE W M AR S AR AT EE SRR
THENEMEE TEUBBLELRE
I - EAFENEBESE KRZRIIABE

Bz e

12. fTE€=mI A

The Group/HKTDC
REEKF
(HK$'000) (B¥FT) 2013 2012
Non-Current Liabilities as EEEBERAZERBEE
per Balance Sheets
Interest rate swap contracts — FEBHELH-RERELE 1,355 6,218
cash flow hedges
Current Liabilities as per EERBERAZREBARE
Balance Sheets
Interest rate swap contracts — FEHEE 4 — B REL 5,418 5,035
cash flow hedges
Forward foreign exchange REPNES K — IR e EEH 6,831 1,993
contracts — cash flow hedges
Total st 12,249 7,028

12.
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(@)

Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward foreign
exchange contracts as at 31 March 2013 were US$42.53 million
(equivalent to HK$331.77 million) (2012: US$49.16 million (equivalent
to HK$383.45 million)) would be exchanged into mainly Renminbi, Euro,
Swiss Franc and Japanese Yen of HK$113.65 million, HK$87.69 million,
HK$49.21 million and HK$39.45 million respectively at pre-determined
rates.

The hedged highly probable forecast transactions denominated in foreign
currency are expected to occur at various dates during the next 12 months.
Gains and losses relate to effective hedges recognised in the Hedging
Reserve in equity (note 19) on forward foreign exchange contracts as of
31 March 2013 and 2012, are recognised in the Consolidated Income and
Expenditure Account in the period or periods during which the hedged
forecast transaction affects the Consolidated Income and Expenditure
Account.

The ineffective portion recognised in the Consolidated Income and
Expenditure Account that arises from cash flow hedges amounted to a loss
of HK$0.42 million (2012: HK$0.59 million).

Interest Rate Swap Contracts

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap
contracts as at 31 March 2013 were HK$300 million (2012: HK$300
million) with expiry date on 30 June 2014.

The fixed interest rates of interest rate swap contracts for the year
ended 31 March 2013 vary from 2.185% to 2.2175% (2012: 2.185%
t0 2.2175%). Gains or losses relate to effective hedges on interest rate
swap contracts as of 31 March 2013 are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Hedging Reserve in equity
(note 19). Such gains or losses will be continuously released to the
Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account at each loan installment
until the full repayment of the bank borrowings (note 14).

There was no ineffective portion to be recognised in the Consolidated
Income and Expenditure Account from interest rate swap cash flow
hedges for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012.

12.

TTEERMIA (&)

(a)

(b)

REMNESH

201338318 - RS E A
EEAMNREAS S EAL238E
JC (FHE R B3183,1778 L) (2012
FE 49168 F T (HERBEIE
83458 7))  WE X ERUEIRTE
BEXRHIBIEARE BT Wt
ERBFIA T - DRI AEE1E,3658
TL B HE8,7698 T » B 154,9218 T
MEH3,9458 7T °

SN EHME T 2 VEEDR 8 = [ AT AL B
ARTERIRZ SRR K218 A WE %
8 B HIE & - B20134F 2012438
318 - BtERHSNES R B BENHTE
R N B R R R R RS FE
K (MFE19) - EEHAR FHELRE
W sz 2= /) — B =k % B ER R O e 3R -

EHFalXRPRARERSREY
B EHONEESREAEE2E

i —

JC(2012F & « BHES9E L) ©

FERIEHN

M2013F3 8318  MARLEHNF =
BHANNRTASCHEABEIE
TL(2012F [  BHE3E L) - ZIHA
A2014F6H308

RAFE  FBEFENF2.185E
22175 (201246 [ : 2.185E &
2.2175/E) - ®2013F3A318 * &
F =I5 HiE K9 B 00D /O IR a5 s
BELRE 2ERER Mg AR+
FEEPER (HTE19) - R EE
BEBREELRAINTREETEE
BITEERIE (M14) -

REE2013F K&201243A3181E2

FE - WENFERSRELIPH
BREBONEGRE R RPER

101



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4z

13.

102

BB HwARME

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 13. BHEeRIBITESZ
The Group HKTDC
REE wE

(HK$' 000) (BEF ) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Time deposits held at banks RITEHTER 522,435 506,359 522,435 506,359
Deposits held by fund managers RELEFRERERN 92,397 100,848 92,397 100,848

for investments RETFR
Imprest accounts for overseas YBINEE T2 EREE AR 3,399 13,387 3,399 13,387

promotional projects
Cash, saving and current EFERe  HER 137,303 141,056 123,137 138,764

accounts YEFO&TF

755,534 761,650 741,368 759,358
As at 31 March 2013, the effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits HHEISRTTIFA2013E3 A3 1 HMBEREF
was 1.0% per annum (2012: 1.6% per annum). These deposits have maturity EA1.0E Q012FEF 1.6/E) + LEFHHN
periods ranging from 30 to 90 days (2012: ranging from 30 to 90 days). FHEHBENF30HE90H (2012FF < 30
HZ90H) °
The carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances were denominated in the ReRBTEFHOEREEENTIEE AE
following currencies: i
The Group HKTDC
REE wxE
(HK$' 000) (BETFT) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Hong Kong dollars B 79,180 55,549 66,118 54,328
Euro BT 43,433 22,266 43,433 22,266
United States dollars ETT 597,177 649,606 597,177 649,606
Other foreign currencies HAbHNEE 35,744 34,229 34,640 33,158
755,534 761,650 741,368 759,358

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4

14.

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &R E FE&RBF R 2012/13

SRR

BANK BORROWINGS AND FINANCE COSTS 14. SRTERRMKEER
HKTDC has entered into an unsecured bank loan facility arrangement for rERAEEEZEEROFERETEIE
HK$720 million to partly finance the construction of the HKCEC Atrium Link o EE - ER —IHE B HE7182,0008 T
Extension project. The bank loan is denominated in Hong Kong dollars and EEMHRTERRE DS - LRITER
carries floating interest rate. The effective interest rate at balance sheet date was NBEREMN  HEBIE - RNFHEAHD
1.6% (2012: 1.5%). The exposure of the bank loan to interest-rate changes and EBRFMEA1.6/E (2012FEF : 1.5E) - B
the contractual repricing dates at the end of the reporting period are as follows: FHEAZNEEHTEZRTERRES
NEFEERPOT
The Group/HKTDC
TEEKF
(HK$’ 000) (BE¥TIT) 2013 2012
One Month —f&A 150,000 222,000
Three Months =f&A 300,000 300,000
450,000 522,000

The bank loan is repayable in quarterly installments for a period of 10 years
commencing from July 2009. The carrying amount at the year end approximates
its fair value and repayable as follows:

fmi% 220094 7 A#E10GF IR EE D Hi(E
CHEMERFAREQNFERE B
SEEMAT -

e

fNa F”a

The Group/HKTDC

REEKF
(HK$'000) (BEETIT) 2013 2012
Within one year —FLAT 72,000 72,000
Between one to two years —EZFNR 72,000 72,000
Between two to five years “E2REAN 216,000 216,000
After five years HFELA 90,000 162,000
450,000 522,000

As at 31 March 2013, HK$300 million (2012: HK$300 million) of HKTDC's total
borrowings bore effectively a fixed rate under the interest rate swap contracts
(note 12), and the remaining bore floating interest rates.

Interest expense recognised in the Consolidated Income and Expenditure
Account for the year ended 31 March 2013 amounted to HK$7.84 million
(2012: HK$8.04 million).

M2013F3A310 BB EE TR B3

BT (20126 5 BB B R84

AT WA TE SFTE (T5E12) - 8458
OSBRI B E

REZE2013F3A31B It FE @ AWK

RERNFEE R ABEI848 T (20125
€ BHE80AETT) ©
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ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

15. FETERFR - FESHIE B RFAWRIA

The Group HKTDC
FEM ENG)
(HK$' 000) (BEF ) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Accounts payable RIS BRER 3,400 21,655 3,400 21,655
Receipts in advance due —F AT AW FRIE 634,914 596,831 634,822 596,406
within one year
Accruals fEEtIEE 324,224 264,635 320,950 261,577
Other payables E b EERFR 136,729 122,660 135,683 130,049
1,099,267 1,005,781 1,094,855 1,009,687
Receipts in advance comprised: TEYRIE B EE
The Group HKTDC
FEM ENC]
(HK$' 000) (BEETTT) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Within one year included in —FUATBIEE 634,914 596,831 634,822 596,406
“Accounts Payable, Accruals [ FEATBRR
and Receipts in Advance” FEETIE B K FEUERIA
After one year on balance sheets —FULREEBERYA 110,520 145,416 110,520 145,416
as “Non-current Liabilities"” [IEmEaE]
745,434 742,247 745,342 741,822

The carrying amounts of accounts payable and other payables, which
approximate their fair values, were denominated in the following currencies:

FERTRR AR S E A B AR R AR E A A R
FEEE U TIESESEMN:

The Group HKTDC
REE E
(HK$" 000) (B®FIT) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Hong Kong dollars bt 57,796 78,479 58,675 86,495
Renminbi AR 63,903 55,260 63,903 55,260
Euro BT 6,109 911 6,109 911
United States dollars ETT 8,743 7,575 8,743 7,575
Other foreign currencies H b HNEE 3,578 2,090 1,653 1,463

140,129 144,315 139,083 151,704

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &R E FE&RBF R 2012/13
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GENERAL FUND 16. EBES
The Group (a) A&£EE
2013 2012
HKCEC
Atrium
Link
Extension Others Total Total
BEEER
BREH O
(HK$’ 000) (BEFIT) hEREE Hith B kL]
Balance brought forward ERBIAE R 546,454 782,643 1,329,097 1,312,263
Transfer to Consolidated BEmal® - (39,961) (39,961) (70,039)
Income and Expenditure
Account
Transfer from Reserve Fund BAREEES (H:E17) 29,386 19,618 49,004 70,403
(Note 17)
Transfer from Exhibition BERERSEES (HE18) - 2,825 2,825 14,205
Contracting Services
Fund (Note 18)
Transfer from Other Specific ~ #BEMFTEES (HiFE19) - = = 2,265
Funds (Note 19)
Balance carried forward BRI FEAR 575,840 765,125 1,340,965 1,329,097
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GENERAL FUND (Cont’d)

16. EBEE<S (E)

(b) HKTDC (b) =&B
2013 2012
HKCEC
Atrium
Link
Extension Others Total Total
EEER
BREH L
(HK$'000) (BT IT) FREIERE Hit #zE BRE
Balance brought forward AR AR 546,454 709,601 1,256,055 1,238,651
Transfer to Income and BEWSE R - (45,250) (45,250) (71,281)
Expenditure Account
Transfer from Reserve BEHEES 29,386 22,559 51,945 72,215
Fund (Note 17) (F5E17)
Transfer from Exhibition BEREREES - 2,825 2,825 14,205
Contracting Services (Mt5E18)
Fund (Note 18)
Transfer from Other Specific ~ BBEEMZFTES = = = 2,265
Funds (Note 19) (Fg5E19)
Balance carried forward HEBTFEAR 575,840 689,735 1,265,575 1,256,055

The General Fund represents the Group’s contribution to the HKCEC
Atrium Link Extension, other property, plant and equipment, operating
assets, exhibition stand systems and land use rights.

ERECEAKEMEDNE LGS
REPLDERZE  HEEWX
RN  REEE  REBUEK
BRI HERE-

HONG KONG TRADE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT &R E FE&RBF R 2012/13
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17.

18.

RESERVE FUND

17. REES

The Group HKTDC
rEH KE
(HK$'000) (B®FT) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Balance brought forward ZE 1,099,095 1,097,498 1,052,373 1,052,588
Transfer to General Fund (Note 16) #AFE@E S (M3 16) (49,004) (70,403) (51,945) (72,215)
Transfer from Convention and BRERteREEPLES 69,735 72,000 69,735 72,000
Exhibition Centre Fund (Note 19) (FfizE19)
Balance carried forward HRTFEEH 1,119,826 1,099,095 1,070,163 1,052,373

REBBEHERBIEHIEVIEED 5E22(2)

Section 22(2) of Part VI on Financial Provisions and Reports of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council Ordinance requires disclosure of all unallocated
balances and surpluses available for use during the year. The Reserve Fund
represents all such surpluses.

EXHIBITION CONTRACTING SERVICES FUND

GRARARMBEBRBENRE KB
AR E B RN R AB AR R B
BN AR - REESESNIEFRKT

M -

18. RERKES

The Group/HKTDC

AEEKF
(HK$’ 000) GBEETIT) 2013 2012
Balance brought forward T 149,577 163,782
Transfer (to)/from General Fund B(E),/BEEEs (Hix16)
(Note 16)
— Acquisition of operating assets —BELEEE (17,653) (25,416)
— Depreciation/amortisation — B ETE 14,762 11,153
of operating assets
— Written-down value of operating — — & & & & ERIMURE 66 58
assets on disposal
(2,825) (14,205)
Balance carried forward BRI FEAR 146,752 149,577

The Exhibition Contracting Services Fund represents the accumulated net
income generated from operating assets provided for support services to trade
fairs and exhibitions organised by the Group. This Fund is set aside for future
replacement and purchase of additional operating assets.

RERBESEAELEEREZIERS
FAREFEHOE SRE S FIGH 25
B BERENBEAREEREE
FEBIME R AR -
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19. OTHER SPECIFIC FUNDS

19. HtBEES

(a) The Group (a) AKEH
2013 2012
Convention
Retirement Exhibition And
Hedging Benefit Capital Stand  Exhibition
Reserve  Scheme Assets  Systems Centre Total Total
RAIAER B RE#SY E2RE
(HK$'000) (BE%TT) Fapal= ] Tl &E ®E s o ki
Balance brought forward R o3 (13,246) 88,796 76,401 53,428 199,366 404,745 375,168
Transfer to Reserve Fund BAGEES (W17)
(Note 17) - - - - (69,735) (69,735) (72,000)
Transfer from/(to) Consolidated &8 /(#) &AM &
Income and Expenditure
Account
- Interest income —FEUA - - - - 1,748 1,748 2,933
~ Gain from investment in —REWE - - 4,025 2,815 - 6,840 4,731
fixed-income and equity
securities
~ Ineffective portion of cash -RenEeHHn 419 - - - - 419 593
flow hedge B\
- Cash contribution net of - BEEFINGBER - (8,656) - - - (8,656) 10,420
actuarial retirement WERIZ HFE
benefit expenses
— Fund utilised for HKCEC - EALERETL - - - - (910) (910) (1,304)
Phase Ill studies ZHIFREE L
~ Surplus from HKCEC - EREHEEERD - - - - 112563 112,563 | | 103,149
Operation SERH
419 (8,656) 4,025 2,815 113,401 112,004 120,522
Other Comprehensive Income Hiv 2 Ehs
~ Realisation of cash flow -RERBEHHER 14,835 - - - - 14,835 (1,845)
hedges
— Fair value loss on forward —FHRIINES D (8,839) - - - - (8,839) (3,582)
foreign currency contracts AHERE
at year end
— Fair value loss on interest —ERFIRBHAL (6,773) - - - = (6,773) | | (11,253)
rate swap contracts AHEBE
at year end
(777) - - - - (777) (16,680)
Transfer to General Fund BALRES
(Note 16) (MisE16)
— HKCEC Atrium Link —-EREEBEERL - - - - - - (2,265)
Extension HpEER
Balance carried forward BETFELER (13,604) 80,140 80,426 56,243 243,032 446,237 404,745
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(b)
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19. HBEES (&)

HKTDC (b) =B
2013 2012
Convention
Retirement Exhibition  Investment And
Hedging Benefit Capital Stand In Exhibition
Reserve Scheme Assets  Systems  Subsidiary Centre Total Total
RHRER BRi  RESL REWE SBREE
(HK$'000) (B%TTT) e BE BE ®E A7 AL fam Bz
Balance brought forward IR (13,246) 88,796 76,401 53,428 105,559 199,366 510,304 479,068
Transfer to Reserve Fund BEEES (ME17)
(Note 17) - - - - - (69,735) (69,735) (72,000)
Transfer from/(to) Income and BE/ () RAKTE
Expenditure Account
- Interest income ~FISMA - - - - - 1,748 1,748 2,933
— Gain from investment in ~ B - - 4,025 2,815 2,419 = 9,259 6,390
fixed-income and equity
securities
- Ineffective portion of cash “RERgHn 419 - - - - - 419 593
flow hedge ESvei)
— Cash contribution net of ~BefINkEE - (8,656) - - = = (8,656) 10,420
actuarial retirement BARER
benefit expenses e
~ Impairment loss of ~REMHBLA - - - - (9,875) - (9,875) -
investment in a HEEE
subsidiary
—Fund utilised for HKCEC -BREERETO - - = = = (910) (910) (1,304)
Phase Il studies SRS
= Surplus from HKCEC -BALERERL - - - - - 112,563 112,563 103,149
Operation 2ERH
419 (8,656) 4,025 2,815 (7,456) 113,401 104,548 122,181
Other Comprehensive Income HthzENE
- Realisation of cash flow
hedges ~RERMEHHER | 14,835 - - - - - 14,835 (1,845)
— Fair value loss on forward ~ R ENERY) (8,839) - - - - - (8,839) (3,582)
foreign currency contracts NTESE
at year end
— Fair value loss on interest —FEFIREBAY) (6,773) - - - - - (6,773)| | (11,253)
rate swap contracts NTHEEE
at year end
(777) - - - - - (777) (16,680)
Transfer to General Fund (Note 16) B &3EE4 (M 16) - - - - - - - (2,265)
~ HKCEC Atrium Link -ERERRETL
Extension ERR
Balance carried forward BETEEES (13,604) 80,140 80,426 56,243 98,103 243,032 544,340 510,304
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19.

110

OTHER SPECIFIC FUNDS (Cont'd)

The Hedging Reserve represents the effective portion of fair value gains or losses
arising from the cash flow hedges as explained in note 2(j) and is recycled to the
Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account between one month and twelve
months from the balance sheet date.

The Retirement Benefit Scheme Fund represents the Group’s contribution
to the scheme net of actuarial retirement benefit expenses charged to the
Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account.

The Capital Assets Fund exists for the acquisition of the Group’s properties and
will be transferred to the General Fund upon the execution of asset purchases.

The Exhibition Stand Systems Fund was set up for the acquisition of unique,
custom-designed exhibition stand systems to upgrade the presentation of the
Group's overseas promotional projects. Charges for the use of the exhibition
stand systems and the amortisation of costs over the expected useful lives of
the assets are dealt with through the Consolidated Income and Expenditure
Account.

The Investment in Subsidiary Fund was set up for the incorporation of subsidiary

companies.

The Convention and Exhibition Centre Fund was set up to deal with the Group’s
contribution to the enhancement works of the HKCEC Phase Il building, as well
as further expansion projects.

19.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B #& 3R &R M=

20. COMMITMENTS

(@)

Capital Commitments

20. &IE
(a) EAREIE

The Group/HKTDC

AEEKEF
(HK$'000) (BBFIT) 2013 2012
Contracted But Not Provided For EENERBE
Property, Plant and Equipment YIZE - BB R EEM 4,525 -

Operating Lease Commitments
Future aggregate minimum operating lease commitments in respect of
office premises and staff quarters at 31 March were payable as follows:

(b) REEEQEE
M3A3E  REEERFERERBE
BEENEEROMARRRITH &
EREMNFBEMNT

The Group
AREE
(HK$'000) (BEFT) 2013 2012
Not later than one year —F LR 21,362 13,053
Later than one year and E_EZFERFAN 12,673 9,803
not later than five years
34,035 22,856

Future aggregate minimum operating lease receivables in respect of
properties at 31 March were as follows:

M3A31HE  REEBYERNLEHE
HMRARERNZEESERN

T
The Group
rEH
(HK$'000) (BETT) 2013 2012
Not later than one year —FEUR 6,321 3,410
Later than one year and FEFRAFNR 7,393 586
not later than five years
13,714 3,996
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21.

22.

112

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

As HKTDC was incorporated under the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
Ordinance and seven Council members including the Council Chairman are
nominated by the Chief Executive, the HKSAR Government has significant
influence in making financial and operational policy decisions and is regarded
as the Group'’s related party. In addition to the subvention payable to HKTDC
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered into related
party transactions during the year with the HKSAR Government related entities
in exhibitions, missions and other operational activities for trade promotion
purposes.

OTHER MATTERS

The Group provides financial assistance to The Hong Kong Shippers’ Council and
subsidises the activities of Hong Kong/Japan Business Co-operation Committee.
Expenditure for these purposes during the year, which has been dealt with in the
Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account, was as follows:

21.

22.

B ALTIRE
ABEKIEEEEZDEHRBIGEOIEMMAL -
tRBEENE  BREEEEIFE BT
BEBEHARET At BERFHRA
BOPBETBRERATZE UNER
BB AL - RAMBRE LM mHAKE
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EREBNEFHERBZANZ S BREERE
ZRES JREMEBEZNERLY -

H 518
AEERHVBETEENEAZES
WRHERKESEZEGNES - KF
FLEGAERIREBZHEERMT

(HK$'000) (BEETIT) 2013 2012
The Hong Kong Shippers’ Council ~ &BRNEAZES 6,101 5,873
Hong Kong/Japan Business BREESIERZE® 144 656

Co-operation Committee
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Auditor and Principal Bankers ¥ 26 & * E481T

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China Group

Bank of East Asia Limited

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Limited

Citibank, N.A.

Dah Sing Bank Limited

Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank
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The Year Ahead KK zt2l

The coming fiscal year will represent the final year in the HKTDC's current three-year plan,
which covers the period from 2011/12 to 2013/14.

The objectives remain consistent with the previous fiscal year. They are:

¢ Help Hong Kong companies maximise opportunities created by the reshaping of the global
economy

¢ Champion Hong Kong's role as Asia’s central business district for the global economy

¢ Sharpen the HKTDC's capabilities to serve and nurture a new breed of SMEs

The main priority for 2013/14 will be to identify new markets for Hong Kong SMEs, while
strengthening their competitiveness by upgrading their operations or helping them relocate
their manufacturing base to lower-cost alternatives.

Other key priorities for the HKTDC during this period include assisting overseas companies to
enter the Chinese mainland through Hong Kong, while helping mainland companies expand
their international operations via the city. This will be underpinned by the promotion of
business-services anchor events in Hong Kong and signature promotions in mature markets.

The mainland remains an important destination for Hong Kong manufacturers to build their
brands, and the HKTDC will help local companies access this market through consumer
shows, expansion of the Design Gallery network and online offerings.

With South and Southeast Asia representing key markets for our manufacturers and services
providers, the HKTDC will conduct signature promotions in Indonesia and India, as well as
trade events in Malaysia and Vietnam.

RERBERBBRBREETH=FFEzBRE—F  Z=FTEIRE2011/12 E 2013/14FE °
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Council Members IBE

as of 31 March 2013
HZE2013FE3H31H

CHAIRMAN
Jack So, GBs, OBE, Jp

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS

The Honourable Sir CK Chow

Chairman

Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce

Dr Roy Chung, 88s, Jp
Chairman
Federation of Hong Kong Industries

Benjamin Hung, /~
Chairman
The Hong Kong Association of Banks

The Honourable Gregory So, GBs,
Secretary for Commerce & Economic Development
Hong Kong SAR Government

Irons Sze, Jp
President
The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong

The Honourable James Tien, Gss, /P
Chairman
Hong Kong Tourism Board

Michael Wong, Jp
Director of Information Services
Hong Kong SAR Government

Dr Charles Yeung, sBs, Jp

Chairman
The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce
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ERmEEL
BREAELR
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BBTHEBEESIE

HEARIESeE (kP
BEBRITRASERE

BRIPRITE (2 SHEE A THL)
AR EERBRR
EEE R TH R BT

MeERIESCAE (APt
ERTFEREHEEER

HILE#HE @smes  Av4t)
EBIRBEERBDERE

HERTE (T t)
FEEE R
BBERTTR R

GEEL @remes A THT)
ERTEEESY

NOMINATED MEMBERS
Shirley Chan, s,

Chief Executive Officer
YGM Trading Ltd

Dr Jonathan Choi, 88s, Jp
Chairman
Sun Wah Group

The Honourable Jeffrey Lam, GBs, sss, Jp
Managing Director
Forward Winsome Industries Ltd

Stanley Lau, 88s, MH, Jp
Managing Director
Renley Watch Manufacturing Company Ltd

MEMBERS APPOINTED BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Philip Chen, Gss, sBs, Jp

Managing Director

Hang Lung Properties Ltd

Ayesha M Lau
Partner in Charge, Tax — HKSAR
KPMG

The Honourable Andrew Leung, Gas, /P
Chairman
Sun Hing Knitting Factory Ltd

Tom Tang, /P
Managing Director
TTM Technologies Enterprises (HK) Ltd

Jennifer Woo
Chairman & CEO
The Lane Crawford Joyce Group

Dr Royce Yuen, Jp
Managing Director
Lifestyle Federation Ltd

REHE
BRIRIS L2 (A T t)
YGME ZER A BITHEER

BZERE T gsngs A THL)
MEEEER

MIEEZE 2uHES  REMES - X FHT)
KMEEERAAESEER

RIS L (ishEs - £BHS - AF41)
BEREGR AR EEHLE

HITHREZENHKE
PREIREITLE (2 2HBE  REHES A THL)
BEMERRAFESBLRE

PRt
EHRHE A EBT
FRFITTHERBEEARA

REEFZE o5ng2s A T#L)
e ERARA }*

EREFSLE kFat
AERBECEEB)BRARESALE

RRBE/NME
Chairman & CEO
The Lane Crawford Joyce Group
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Membership of Committees ZEEKE

as of 31 March 2013
HZE2013F3A31H

STAFF & FINANCE COMMITTEE

The Honourable Andrew Leung, Gas, /7 (Chairman)
Shirley Chan, Jp

Dr Roy Chung, 88s, JP

Benjamin Hung, /»

The Honourable Jeffrey Lam, GBs, sBS, Jp
Stanley Lau, BBS, MH, JP

The Honourable Gregory So, Gss, /P
Irons Sze, Jp

Tom Tang, /r

Dr Royce Yuen, Jp

Fred Lam, Jp

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Honourable Andrew Leung, Gss, Jp (Chairman)
Dr Jonathan Choi, 8ss, /P

The Honourable Jeffrey Lam, Gas, sBs, Jp

PRODUCT PROMOTION PROGRAMME COMMITTEE

The Honourable Jeffrey Lam, Gss, sBs, Jp (Chairman)
Professor KB Chan, mH

Charles Chan, BBs, Jp

Bob Chong, 88s

Anthony Keung

Stanley Lau, BBS, MH, JP

The Honourable Andrew Leung, GBs, Jp
The Honourable Gregory So, 6Bs, Jp
Cliff K Sun, 8BS, JP

Tom Tang, Jp

Michael Wong, Jp

CK Yeung

Fred Lam, up

SERVICE PROMOTION PROGRAMME COMMITTEE
Dr Jonathan Choi, 8ss, sp (Chairman)
Nicholas Brooke, sss, 88s, Jp

Viveca Chan

Philip Chen, G8s, sBs, Jp

Ayesha M Lau

Professor Patrick Lau, sBs, Jp

The Honourable Gregory So, Gss, Jp
James E Thompson, GBs

Michael Wong, Jp

Dr Royce Yuen, Jp

Fred Lam, Jp
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Directorate and Senior Staff KR SHREE

as of 31 March 2013
HZE2013F3A31H

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Fred Lam, Jp

DIRECTORATE
Benjamin Chau
Deputy Executive Director

Margaret Fong
Deputy Executive Director

Raymond Yip
Assistant Executive Director

Clare Wong
Assistant Executive Director

Lawrence Yipp
Assistant Executive Director

SENIOR STAFF
Head Office
Ralph Chow
William Chui
Sophia Chong
Jenny Koo

Loretta Wan

Regional Offices
Stephen Wong
Brian Ng

Louis Ho

Shigemi Furuta
Perry Fung

Dannie Chiu
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